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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Arka Fincap Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of Arka Fincap Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the Financial Statements, including a summary of Significant Accounting Policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its profit (including Other Comprehensive
Income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Board of Director’s report, but does not include the Financial Statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. The Board Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor's report.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial
Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Board report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we will

communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters. We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to be
communicated in our report.

Impairment of loans and advances, including off-balance sheet elements
Under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, allowance for loan losses are determined using expected credit loss

(ECL) estimation model. The estimation of ECL on financial instruments involves significant judgement and
estimates.

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 2.06A(iv) to the Financial Statements: Impairment of Financial
Assets”, “Note 2.22 to the Financial Statements: Significant Accounting Policies - Critical Accounting
Estimates” and “Note 3.04 and 3.05 to the Financial Statements: Loans and Investments respectively”.

Charge for the year: INR 572.67 lakhs

Provision as on 315t March 2023: INR 1,493.91 lakhs

We have considered the impairment of loans and advances as Key audit Matter considering significant
judgement, higher estimation uncertainty, limited historical data and potential range of reasonable outcomes
greater than the our materiality.

The key areas where we identified greater levels of management judgement and therefore increased levels of
audit focus in the Company’s estimation of ECLs are data inputs, model estimations which involves
determining Probabilities of Default (PD) and Loss given Default (LGD) based on historical data and
determining impact of forward looking economic scenarios.

Our audit methodology included the following:
+  Evaluated the design and implementation of key internal controls over loan impairment process
+  Evaluated the appropriateness of the impairment principles based on the requirements of IND AS

+  Validating completeness and accuracy of the data and reasonableness of assumptions used in the
model

«  Evaluating the appropriateness of Management’s Judgements applied in the model

«  Performed Test of details over calculation of impairment allowance for assessing the completeness,
accuracy and relevance of data.

«  Ensuring the compliance w.r.t. provisioning requirements as per RBI Master Directions
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*  Ensured presentation and disclosure

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial

Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
amanner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A; a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.
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d)

8)

h)

In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial reporting

of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

As required by section 197 (16) of the Act; in our opinion and according to information and
explanation provided to us, the remuneration paid by the company to its directors is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act and remuneration paid to directors is not in excess of
the limit laid down under this section.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at 31
March 2023.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (@) The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts to the financial statements, if any, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company

(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(b) the management has represented to us, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts to the Financial Statements, if any, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the information and explanation given to us and audit procedures performed as
considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that
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has caused us to believe that the representations made by the management and as mentioned
under sub-clause (iv)(a) and (iv)(b) above contain any material misstatement.

(v) The Company has not declared or paid dividend during the year.

(vi) The requirement to the use of accounting software for maintaining Company’s books of account
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility, as prescribed under rule 3(1) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is deferred to financial years commencing on or after April
1, 2023, therefore reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 is
not applicable for financial year ended on March 31, 2023.

For P G BHAGWAT LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101118W/W100682

Nachiket Deo
Partner

Membership Number:
UDIN: 2311769 ¢ B4A Ko

Place: Pune
Date: 28 April, 2023
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors” Report (CARO)

Referred to in paragraph 1 of our “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” on even date

(i)

(@)

(A) | The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars including quantitative

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) | The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b)

The Property, Plant & Equipment of the Company have been physically verified by the Management
during the year. The discrepancies noticed on such verification were not material and have been

properly dealt with in the books of account. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(©)

The Company does not own any immovable properties (other than properties where the company is
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) as disclosed in Note
3.09 on Property, Plant & Equipment to the financial statements. Therefore, the provisions of Clause

3(i)(c) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

(d)

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets during the year. Accordingly provisions of Clause 3(i)(d) of the said Order are not

applicable to the Company.

(@)

According to the information and explanations provided to us, no proceedings have been initiated or
are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. Therefore

reporting under clause 3(i)(e) of the order is not applicable.

(i)

@)

The Company is in the business of rendering services, and consequently, does not hold any inventory.

Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ii)(a) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b)

We have observed differences in the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such
banks or financial institutions as compared to the books of account maintained by the Company.
However, we have not carried out a specific audit of such statements. The reasons for such differences

are given in note no. 3.14 of the financial statements of the Company.

(i)

The company’s principal business is to give loans hence the provisions of Clause 3(iii)(a) of the said

order are not applicable.
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(b)

In terms of the information and explanations given to us and the books of account and records
examined by us, investments made, loans provided, security given and the terms and conditions of
the grant of all aforesaid loans and advances in the nature of loans during the year are not prejudicial

to the Company’s interest.

(©)

In respect of loans, advances and investments in the nature of loans (together referred to as 'loan
assets'), the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated. Note no.
2.06(A)(iv) to the financial statements explains the Company’s accounting policy relating to
impairment of financial assets which include loan assets. In accordance with that policy, loan assets
with balance as at 31 March 2023, aggregating  34.54 lakhs were categorised as credit impaired (‘'Stage
3") and ¥ 194.82 lakhs were categorised as those where the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition (‘Stage 2"). Disclosures in respect of such loans have been provided in note no. 6.04
to the financial statements. In all other cases, the repayment of principal and interest is generally
regular. Having regard to the nature of the Company’s business and the volume of information
involved, it is not practicable to provide an itemised list of loan assets where delinquencies in the

repayment of principal and interest have been identified.

(d)

The total amount overdue for more than ninety days, in respect of the loans and advances in the
nature of loans, as at the year-end is Rs. 25.41 lakhs. Reasonable steps are being taken by the Company

for recovery of the principal and interest.

©

The company’s principal business is to give loans hence the provisions of Clause 3(iii)(e) of the said

order are not applicable.

(®

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to Promoters, related parties as

defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans
or made investments, or provided guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section 185 and
186. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

(v) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not

accepted public deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits, hence the directive issued by
the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of
the Companies Act and the rules framed there under, are not applicable to it. According to
information and explanation given to us, no order has been passed against the company by Company
Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other

tribunal.
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(vi)

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the services rendered by the Company. Accordingly, the

provision of clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including
Goods and Service Tax, provident fund, income tax, and other material statutory dues, as applicable,
with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company does not have any dues on account

of employees’ state insurance, sales tax, duty of customs or duty of excise.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of income tax, Goods and services tax and provident fund and other material statutory dues,
as applicable were in arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date

they became payable.

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited on

account of any dispute.

(viii)

In terms of the information and explanations given to us and the books of account and records
examined by us, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Therefore reporting under clause 3(viii) of the order is

not applicable.

)

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given
to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment

of interest thereon to any lender as at the balance sheet date.

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures,
we report that the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution

or government or any government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for which they

were obtained.
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(d)

On the basis of the maturity profile of assets and liabilities provided in the Note no. 5.11 to the
financial statements, financial liabilities maturing within the 12 months following the reporting date
(i.e. 31 March 2023) are less than expected recoveries from financial assets during that period. Further,

funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term

purposes by the Company.

The company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture, hence reporting under clause

3(ix)(e) of the order is not applicable.

The company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture, hence reporting under clause

3(ix)(f) of the order is not applicable.

)

@)

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer (including debt instruments)

during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(x)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the

Company.

(b)

The Company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully or partly or optionally) during the year under review and hence reporting under

paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(i)

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by the Company or

on the Company noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by

the Management.

(b)

No report under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, has been filed in form ADT-4
as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central

Government, during the year and up to the date of this report. Accordingly reporting under clause

3(xi)(b) of the order is not applicable.

(©)

According to the information and explanations given to us and as represented to us by the

management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the company during the year.

(xii)

In our opinion, the company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, the provisions specified in

Paragraph 3(xii)(a), 3(xii)(b) and 3(xii)(c) of Companies (Auditor's Report) order, 2020 are not
applicable to the company.

(xiii)

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with section 188 and 177 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party

transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements, etc., as required by the applicable

accounting standards.
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(xiv)

(a)

In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal audit system

commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b)

We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the period under

audit in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

(xv)

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of

Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)

(@)

The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
and it has obtained certificate of registration dated 25 July 2019 (previously issued in the name of

Kirloskar Capital Limited vide certificate dated 29 October 2018).

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, the
Company has conducted Non-Banking Financial activities with a valid Certificate of Registration

(CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

©

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, the
Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve

Bank of India, hence reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the order is not applicable.

(d)

Based on information and explanation given to us and as represented by the management, the Group

has one Core Investment Companies (CIC)s as part of the Group which is Holding Company of the

reporting entity.

(xvii)

The Company has not incurred cash losses during current financial year and had not incurred cash

losses during immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii)

There has been no resignation by statutory auditors during the year hence reporting under clause

3(xviii) of the order is not applicable.

(xix)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, otlier
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as
on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance

sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.
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) | (@

There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing
projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance

with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

(b)

There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) in respect of ongoing
projects requiring a transfer to a Special Account in compliance with sub-section (6) of Section 135 of

the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For P G BHAGWAT LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 101118W/W100682

-

Nachiket Deo
Partner

Membership No: 117695

UDIN: 23117€¢957 134X kO T 3¢«

Place: Pune

Date: 28 April 2023
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading, “Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our
report on even date:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements of ARKA FINCAP
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to the
Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to the Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal controls based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements.

ARKA FINCAP LIMITED AUDIT REPORT MARCH 31, 2023 oy
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Meaning of Internal Financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Financial
Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls with reference to the Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
the Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For PG BHAGWAT LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm istration Number: 101118W/W100682
/ARG

Nachiket Deo ,
Partner \
Membership Number: 117695
UDIN:23i) 7¢ 4 5 B4XKeT ST5—

Place: Pune
Date: 28 April 2023
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ARKA FINCAP LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 MARCH 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars Note Asat31 March 2023  As at 31 March 2022
I. ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3.01 21,438.88 13.170.32
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3.02 1,022.19 1,015.42
Trade receivables 3.03 - 43.74
Loans 3.04 3,68.572.88 2,29.908.39
Investments 3.05 39,101.78 16,184.30
Other financial assets 3.06 1,100.73 276.79
4,31,236.46 2,60,598.96
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 3.07 445.86 370.17
Deferred tax assets (net) 3.08 1,292.82 652.72
Property, plant and equipment 3.09 313.71 523.49
Intangible assets 3.10 256.15 337.01
Other non-financial assets 3:11 264.44 21737
2,572.98 2,100.76
TOTAL ASSETS 4,33,809.44 2,62,699.72
IL. LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 3.12
(i) total outstanding to micro enterprises and small enterprises 17.73 9.72
(i) to'ral outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 144.48 12437
enterprises
Debt securities 3.13 1,09,742.15 5742547
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 3.14 1,95,521.88 1,16,968.08
Subordinated Debt 3,15 6,317.82 -
Other financial liabilities 3.16 12,673.11 2,300.36
3,24,417.17 1,76,828.00
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions 3.17 466.70 512.65
Other non-financial liabilities 3.18 4,072.61 1,676.57
4,539.31 2,189.22
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,28,956.48 1,79,017.22
Equity
Equity share capital 3.19 88,402.23 75,985.58
Other equity 3.20 16,450.73 7,696.92
TOTAL EQUITY 1,04,852.96 83,682.50
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 4,33,809.44 2,62,699.72
Significant Accounting Policies 2

As per our report of even date attached
For PG BHAGWAT LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101 118W/W 100682

Nachiket Deo
Partner
Membership No. 117695

Place: Pune

Date: 28 April 2023

al Bhandari

Executive Vice Chairman and CEO
DIN: 00001318

Place: Muml

Date: 28 April 2023 |

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arka Fincap Limited

-

{ At/

442<

Amit Kumar Gupta
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai

Mahesh Chhabria
Non Executive Director
DIN: 00166049

Place: Pune

>

Niki Mehta
Company Secretary



ARKA FINCAP LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

: Forthe yearended 31 For the year ended
Particulars Note March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue from operations 4.01
Interest income 35,074.05 19,210.33
Fees and commission income 810.25 503.40
Net gain on sale of investments 1,182.01 380.25
Net gain on fair value changes of investments - 78.76
Total revenue from operations 37,066.31 20,172.74
Other income 4.02 222.57 136.66
Total income 37,288.88 20,309.40
Expenses
Finance costs 4.03 19,617.28 9,173.74
Net loss on fair value changes 4.04 76.10 -
Impairment on financial instruments 4.05 598.76 557.61
Employee benefit expenses 4.06 6,311.95 4,676.27
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 4.07 393.60 365.34
Other expenses 4.08 2,010.72 1,127.82
Total expenses 29,008.41 15,900.78
Profit before tax 8,280.47 4,408.62
Tax expense: 4.09
1. Current tax 2,450.07 1,535.13
2. (Excess)/Short provision related to earlier years 333.12 -

3. Deferred tax expense /(income) (639.18) (378.17)
Total tax expenses 2,144.01 1,156.96
Profit after tax 6,136.46 3,251.66
Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

- Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (3.68) 0.22
- Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 0.93 (0.06)
Other comprehenswe income for the year, net of tax (2.75) 0.16
Total comprehensive income for the period 6,133.71 3,251.82
Earnings per equity share 5.01

Basic eamings per share ( T ) 0.72 0.45
Diluted eamings per share ( 2 ) 0.71 0.45

(Equity Share of face value of % 10 each)

As per our report of even date attached
For PG BHAGWAT LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICALI Firm Registration No.: 1011 18W/W100682

Q

Nachiket Deo
Partner
Membership No. 117695

Place: Pune

Date: 28 April 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Arka Fincap Limited

Vimal Bhandnrl Mahesh Chhabria

Executive Vice Chairman and CEO Non Executive Director

DIN: 00001318 DIN: 00166049

Place: Mumbai Place: Pune

nmar Gupta Niki Mehta

Chief Financial Officer ; Company Secretary

3”' Place: Mumbai \\\4 lace Mumbai

< P
Date: 28 April 2023 /
\\A



ARKA FINCAP LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 m,m h 2023 31 March 2022
A Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net profit before tax 8,280.47 4,408.62
Adjustments for :

Add:
Depreciation and amortisation 393.60 365.34
Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 038 -
Provision for expected credit loss 598.76 557.61
Provision for share based payments 136.78 94.25
Fair value loss / (gain) on investments 76.10 (78.76)
Finance cost 19.617.28 9.173.74
20,822.90 10,112.18
Less:
Interest received on fixed deposits 285.75 260.09
Profit on sale of investments 1,182.01 380.25
Gain on derecognition of ROU asset 545 -
Interest received on debt instrument 1,574.33 468.30
Interest income on security deposit 2445 22.06
Amortised discount income on commercial paper - 303.98
3,071.99 1,434.68
Operating profit before working capital changes 26,031.38 13,086.12
Adjustments:
(Increase)/Decrease in loans and advances (1,39,270.06) (1,39,666.31)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables 43.74 (43.74)
(Increase) / Decrease in security deposits (273.64) (15.75)
(Increase) / Decrease in Prepaid expenses (52.82) (46.63)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other financial assets (158.32) (35.56)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other non-financial assets 5.76 (8.15)
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions 1,350.18 1,170.13
Increase/( Decrease) in trade payable 28.12 67.50
Increase/(Decrease) in Other financial liabilities 9,330.44 273.79
Increase/(Decrease) in Other non-financial liabilities 2,396.04 1,013.45
Cash used in operating activities (1,00,569.18) (1,24,205.15)
Direct taxes paid (2,858.88) (1,820.51)
Net cash used in operating activities (A) (1,03,428.06) (1,26,025.66)
B Cash flows from investing activities
Add:
Interest received on fixed deposits 285.75 245.67
Receipt on sale / redemption of Investments 3,20,978.15 28,564.81
Interest received on debt instrument 1,574.33 -
3,22,838.23 28.810.48
Less:
Increase in other bank balance 6.77 1,001.00
Payments on purchase of investment 3,42,872.12 22,003.53
Payments for Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 132.50 57.43
Payments for Purchase of Other Intangible assets 4.50 139.19
Payments for Purchase of Intangible assets under development - (2.00)
3,43,015.89 23,199.15
Net cash generated from investing activities (B) (20,177.66) 5,611.33
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ARKA FINCAP LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

{Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended

T 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
C Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from issue of equity share capital (including securities premium) 14,899.97 13,001.26
Proceeds from Bank and NBFCs Borrowings (net) 72,972.91 72,408.46
Proceeds from issuance of Non-Convertiable Debentures (net) 63,938.42 24,923.16
Proceeds from issuance of Commercial Papers (net) (162.21) 9.450.15
Finance cost paid (19,593.96) (8.639.67)
Lease liability paid (180.85) (184.17)
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 1,31,874.28 1,10,959.19
Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A) + (B) + (C) 8,268.56 {9.455.14)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 13,170.32 22,625.46
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 21,438.88 13,170.32
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents with the balance sheet

Balances with banks

- in current accounts 6.932.45 3.367.93
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 14,506.43 9,802.39
Total 21,438.88 13,170.32
As per our report of even date attached

For P G BHAGWAT LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Arka Fincap Limited

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101118W/W 100682

| | ¢ el A
(g Hloerlicne

Nachiket Deo Vimal Bhandari Mahesh Chhabria
Partner Executive Vice Chaifinan and CEO Non Executive Director
Membership No. 117695 DIN: 00001318 DIN: 00166049

Place: Mumbai Place: Pune

Amit Kumar Gupta Niki Mehta
A Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Pune % Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 28 April 2023 Date: 28 April 2023




ARKA FINCAP LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (SOCIE)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

{Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

(a) Equity Share Capital ( Refer Note 3.19)

Equity Shares of 2 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

No. of Shares

Amount
Balance as at 31 March 2021 63,99.69.828 63,996.98
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - -
Restated balance as at 31 March 2021 63,99.69828 63,996.98
Shares issued during the year 11.98.86,007 11.988.60
Balance as at 31 March 2022 75.98,55835 75,985.58
Balance at | April, 2022 75.98,55.835 75,985.58
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - -
Restated balance as at 1 April 2022 75,98,55,835 75,985.58
Shares issued during the year 1241.66431 12.416.65
Balance as at 31 March 2023 88.40.22.266 88.402.23
(b) Other equity (Refer Note 3.20)
Reserves and surplus
Particulars Statutory Reserve 5'::2;‘;‘::::; Securities Premium Impairment oo Faraings Total
U/s 451C account Reserve
—BCCOuRL

Balance at 31 March 2021 459.55 699.48 1,134.78 - 1,044.44 333817
Changes in accounting policy or prior period efrors . - - - - -
Restated balance as at 31 March 2021 459.55 699.48 1,134.70 - 1,044.44 333817
Profit for the year - - - - 3,251.66 3,251.66
Other comprehensive income for the year (Actuarial gain ¥ R B - 0.16 0.16
on defined benefit plan, net of tax) )
Total 459.55 699.48 1,134.70 - 4,296.26 6,589.99
Transferred from Retained eamnings 650.31 - - - (65031) -
Share based payment expense (net*) - 93.70 - - - 93.70
Shares issued during the year - - 1,013.22 - - 1,013.22
Balance as at 31 March 2022 1,109.86 793.18 2,147.92 - 3,645.95 7,696.91
Balance at 1 April 2022 1,109.86 793.18 2,147.92 - 3,645.95 7,696.91
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - - - - - -
Restated balance as at | April 2022 1,109.86 793.18 2,147.92 - 3,645.95 7,696.91
Profit for the year - - - - 6.136.46 6,136.46
Other comprehensive income for the year (Actuarial gain - - - R @.75) 2.75)
on defined benefit plan, net of tax) & i
Total 1,109.86 793.18 2,147.92 - 9,779.66 13,830.62
Transferred from Retained earnings 1,227.29 - - - (1.227.29) -
Transferred to Retained earnings - (2.75) - - 2.75 ~
Shares issued during the year - = 2.483.33 - = 2,483.33
Share based payment expense - 136,78 - - “ 136.78
Balance as at 31 March 2023 2.337.15 927.21 463125 - 8.555.12 16.450.73

* The share based payment expenses are net of Rs 0.55 lacs transferred to securities premium account on account of exercise of ESOPs during the previous year ended 31 March 2022

As per our report of even date attached
For P G BHAGWAT LLP

Chartered Accountants
1CAI Firm Registration No.: 1011 18W/W100682

Nachiket Deo
Partner
Membership No. 117695

Place: Pune

Date: 28 April 2023
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Arka Fincap Limited

Vimal Bhandari

DIN: 00001318
Place: Mumbai

Amit

Place: Mumbai

Date: 28 April 2023

r Gupta
Chief Financial Officer
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Mahesh Chhabria
Non Executive Director

DIN: 00166049

Place: Pune

Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai




ARKA FINCAFP LIMITED

Notes to the financial siatements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

)

2.01

2.02

2.03

2.04

205

2.06

2.06.A

Corporate Information

Arka Fincap Limited (Formerly known as Kirloskar Capital Limited) (the ‘Company”) was incorporated on 20 April 2018, The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of
India (RBI) as a non-hanking tinancial Company vide certificate no. N-13.02282 dated 25 July 2019 (previously issued in the pame of Kirloskar Capital Limited vide certiticate
0o, N-13.02282 dated 29 October 2018) in pursuance of Section 45-1A of the ‘RBI" Act, 1934. The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Arka Financial Holdings Private
Limited ("AFHPL"). The Company & primarily engaged in kending activities.

Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended fom time 1o lime) issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs in exercise of the powers
conferred by section 133 read with sub-section (1) of section 210A of the Companies Act, 2013, In addition, the guidance notes/announcements issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) are alo applied along with compliance with other smstmory promulgations require a different reatownt. Any spplication
guidance/clarifications/ directions issned by RBI or other regelators are implemented as and when they are issoed/ applicable.

Basis of preparation

The financial statement comprises of the Balance sheet as at March 31 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the staiement of Other Comprehensive Income, the
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information. The Company has d these financial st: to comply in all material respects with the accounting standards notified under

Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The Company has assessed its liquidity position and its possible sources of funds. The Board of Directors of the Company are confident of the Company’s ability to meet its

obligations as and when hey arise in the next twelve months from the date of these financial statements. Accordingly, these financial have been prepared on a going

concern basis.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost convention as modified by the application of fair value measurements required or
ll d by the rel dards under Ind AS in the case of certain financial assets and linbilities, net defined benefit (asset)/ Hability and share based payments.

P iom of G

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Division I1I to Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013
{“the Act”) applicable for Non- Banking Finance Companies (“NBFC"). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7
“Statement of Cash Flows”, The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule I1T to the
Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes reguired to be disclosed under the notified Ind AS.

Functional Carrency
A in the financial are p i n Indian Rupees in lakhs rounded off to nearest Rupee in Lakhs with two decimal places as permitted by Schedule 11T to the
Companies Act, 2013. Per share data are presented in Indian Rupee to two deciimal places.

Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet when the Company becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the mstrument. The Company
determines the classification ofits financial assets and financial linbilities at initial recognition based on its nature and characteristics.

Financial assets

i) Initial recogaition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attribuiable
1o the acquisition of the financial assets.

The financial assets include investments in mutwal funds, trade and other receivables, loans and advances and cash and bank balances.

ii) Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:
* Al amortised cost.
= At fair value throush other comprehensive income (FVOCT), and
= At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
Debt instruments at amortised cost
A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

« The assct is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset for collecting contractual cash flows, and
* Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

A financial asset is measured a1 amortised cost it
- the financial asset is held within a business mode! whose objective is 1o hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premmim on scquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the
statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Fair value through other comprekensive income (FVOCT)

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely poyments of principal and imerest on the principal ameant outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets, vntil they are derecognised or reclassified, are subsequently measured at fair valve with unrealised gnins or losses recognised in
other comprehensive income excepl for interest income, impainnent gains or losses and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss. .




ARKA FINCAP LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

2 Significant ting policies (Continued)

‘g F

Fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss umless it s measured a1 Amortised cost or at fir value through other comprehensive income.

In addition, the Company may elect to classify a financial asset, which otberwise meeis Amortised cost or fair value through other comprebensive incoms criteria, s a1 fair
value through profit or loss. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates 2 measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as “accounting

mismatch'),

After initial nx nt, such financial assets are quently 1 d at fair value with unrealised gains or losses recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

jii) Reclassifications

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or bas entered into a pass-through srrangement, it eviluates if and to whst extent i bas retained
the risks and rewards of ownership, When it bas neither ferred por retaied sut wally all of the risks and rewards of the assst, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company conlinues (o recognise the transterred asset 10 the extent of the Company’s coniinuing involvement. In tha case, the Company also gnives an iated Hability.
The transferred asset and the iated liability are d oma basis that refleets the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

The following are various reclassifications and how they are accounted for,
Reclassification from Amortised cost to FVTPL : Fair value is measured a1 reclassification date. Difference between previous amortized cost and fair value is
recognised in the statement of Profit and loss.

Reclassification from FVTPL to Amortised cost : Fair value at reclassification date becomes ifs new gross carrying amount. EIR i calcubited based on the new gross
carrying amount.

Reclassification from Amortised cost to FVOCI : Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between previous amortised cost and fair value is recognised in
OCI. No change in EIR due to reclassification.

Reclassification from FVOCI to Amortised cost : Fair value at reclassitication date becomes its new amortised cost carrying amount. However, cummlative gain or loss in
OCL is adjusted against fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had always been measured at amortised cost.

Reclassification from FVYTPL to FVOCI : Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new carrying amount. No other adjustment is required.

Reclassification from FVOCIT to FVTPL : Assets inue to be d ar fir value. Cumntdative gain or ks previously nized ;m OCT 5 rechssified o smtement of
profit and loss at the reclassification date.

iv) Impairment of financial assets

iv. Expected Credit Loss (ECL) principles

The provision for credit risks, which is recognized in accordance with the expected credit loss method specified by Ind AS 109 and in accordance with uniform standards
applied, p all financial assets me; d al amortised cost. The calculation of the provision for credit risks generally takes into account the exposure at default, the
probability of default and the loss given default.

Financial assets are subjevt to credit risks, which are taken into sccount by recognising the amount of the expected Joss; such alk es ane recogaised for both financial assers
with objective evidence of impainnen and non-impaired financial assets.
The general approach is used for financial assets d at smortised cost on initial recognition. Financial assets are broken down into three stages in the general approach.

Stage 1: All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that has low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit
impaired upon origination are classified under this stage. The Company classifies all advances upto 30 days overdue under this category.

Stage 2: All exposures where there has been o significant mcrease in credit risk since initial recognition but ane pot credit impaired are classified under this stage. Exposures ane
classified as Stage 2 when the amount s due for more than 30 days but do not exceed 90 days.

Stage 3: All exp are d as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future ¢ash flows of that asset have occurred.
Exposures where the amount remains due for 90 days or more are considered as to be stage 3 assets,

The Company undertakes the classification of exposures within the aforesaid stages at each borrower account level.

Impairment arises in a number of situntions, such as delayed payment over a certain period, the initiation of enforcement measures, the threat of insolvenicy or over indebtednpess,

application for or the mitiatioa of insolvency p dings. or the filare of restructusing measures.
Reviews are regularly carsied out to ensure that the all are appropriate. Uncollectible loans or receivables that are already subject to a workout process and for which
all collateral has been recovered and all further options for recovering the loan or receivable have been exk d are written off directly. Any valation allowances previousty

recognised are utilised. Income subsequently collected in connection with loans or receivables already written off is recognised in profit o loss.

Loans and receivables are reported in the balance sheet at the net off ECL provision. The provision for credit risks relating to off-balance sheet irrevocable credit commitments
is recognised as ECL provision and shown under provisions on liability side.

iv. Expected Credit Loss (ECL) principles
The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are as follows:
Exposure-At-Default (EAD): The Exposure at Defiult is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date. taking into account expected changes in the exposure after the

reporting date, inchiding repayments of principal and interest, wheth heduled by or otherwise, exp d drawd on committed facilities, and accrued interest
from missed payments.

Probability of Default (PD): The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of defanlt of the exposure over a given time horizon.

Loss Given Default (LGD): The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss srising in the case where a defauli occurs at a given time. It is based on the difierence between
the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral.

The ECL allowance is applied on the financial instruments depending upon the classification of the fizancial instruments as per the credit risk ivolved. ECL allowance is
computed on the below mentioned basis:

12-month ECL: 12-nonth ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that represents the ECL that results from default events on a financial i that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date. 12-month ECL is applied on stage | assets,

Lifetime ECL: Lifetime ECL for credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset in cases of credit impaired loans and in case of financial mstruments whene there has
been significant increase in credit risk since origination, Lifetime ECL is the expected credit foss resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
mstrument. Lifetime ECL is applied on stage 2 and stage 3 assets.

The Company compute the ECL all e on individual basis based on type of asset/exposure and nature of collateral
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2.06.B

2.06.C

2.06.D

2.06.E

Significant accounting policies (Continued
Financial liabifities

i} Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised milially at fair valne minus, i the case of financial Labilities not ded at fair value through profit or loss, wansaction costs 1hat are

attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities. The financial labilities include rade and other payables and loars and bormrowings efc.

i) Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measureiment, tinancial liabilities are classified and measured as follows.

ii.a) Financial Habilities at amortised cost
After initial recognition, financial lmbilities are sub nily i at wsed cost using the EIR method. Gams and Josses are recognised in proft or loss when the

Liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by 1aking into account any discount or prémium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

ii.b) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial Labilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fiir value
through profit or loss. Financial lisbilities are classified as beld for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repuschasing in the pear term

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair vahe throngh profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition. and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109
are satisfied.

De-recognition
a) Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognized when:
- the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
Or
~ The Company has transferred its contractual rights o receive cash flows from the asset or has d an obligation 1o pay the ived cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of 1he asset, or (b) the Company has neilher transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognise the transferned asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing imvolvement. In thar case. the Compeny also recognises an associared Eabiity.

The transferred asset and the Tated liability are d on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retaimed.

b). Derecognition of financial Gabilities

A financial Bability (or a part of & financial liability) is d gnised from its balance sheet when. and only when, it is extinguished ie. when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Fi ial assets and ial liabilities including derivative instruments are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance sheet, if there is currently enfosceable legal right
1o ofiset the ised and there is an i ion 10 settle on a net basis or 10 realise the assets and settle the liabilities simnltancously.

Fair value measurement

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified.
such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company's sccounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fiir values for financial i M: gulariy xws sgmficant uwobservable
mputs and valuation adjustments.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market particip at the date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the jon 10 sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability.

Or

« In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal ot the mnst ad re market pwist be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a bability = d using the assumptions that market parts
act in their economic best interest.

ip would use when pricing the asset or hability, sssuming thar market participants

A fair value ofa non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and babilities for which fair value is d or disclosed m the financial are ¢ ised within the fiur valie erarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant 16 the fair value measurement as a whole:
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2 Significant ing policies (Continued)

2.06.E Fair value measurement (Continued)
Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical asses or linbilities.

Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input thar is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input thal is significant to the fair value meastirement is unobservable:

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers bave occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) al the end of each reporting period.

2.06.F Modification of financial assels and financial Babilities
Financial Assets
If the terms of a financial asseis are modified, the Company evahiates whether the eash flow of the modified assei are substantially different. 1f the cash flows are suhstamiafly
different, then the contractual rights 10 cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case. the original financial asset is derecognised and a new
financial asset is recognised at fair vahie.

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortised cost are not substantially different, then the modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asser. In this
case. the Company recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset as the present value of the renegotiated or modified contractual cashfiows that are discounted at
the financial asset's original effective interest rate and recognises the amount arising from adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in the Statement of
profit and loss. Any costs or fees incarred adjust 1he carrying amount of modified finamcial asset and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified fancial asset. 1f
mchamdiﬁuuliunisarriedomhmmeof[mm'mldiﬂimkiﬁofthebnmw.ﬂtaﬂngainorbss's_ d together with impat Tosses, i other cases, it &
presented as inferest income,

Financial labilities

The Company d ises a fi "hub'hlywhenuslermsarenmdmedmdlhemshﬂuwsoflhcundlfmdhabﬂuyaresubs‘lammﬂydﬂfemm 1n this case, a new financial
liability based on the mochﬁed ferms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability
with modified terms is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

2.07  Share capital
An equity instrament is a contract 1ha evidences residual interest in the assets of the Company afier deducting all of its labilities. Incremental costs directly sttributable 1o the
issuance of new equity shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

2.08  Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

.09  Property, Plant and Equipment

al’mpeﬂy.phuandeqmpmamﬂnedmms! net of acc lated d iation and/or lated impai losses, if any. The cost of an fiem of Propexty, plant and
ises its purchase price, audmhrrmn—mﬁmdabklamorlwzsmdmydmlymﬁmauemsno[‘bmgmglhe:meuols king condition for its intended
use. Subuquemexpm:hmns- pitalised only when # © the future benefits from the specific asser to which it relates,

b. Residual values of all fixed assets are considered as nil.

Depreciation
c. The Company follows Straight Line Method (:SLM’) of deprecintion which is computed based on useful lives of assets as provided in Part “C” of Schedule T of the
Companies Act 2013. Depreciation is charged on the basis of usefol life of assets on stright line method which are follows:
Particulars Estimated useful life
by the Company
Office Equipment § years
Office Equipment (Mobile) 2 years
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Computer Equipment
-Desktop/laptop 3 years

Depreciation on addition is provided from put to use date of assets,
Uiseful lives and methods of depreciation of all fixed assets are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

10 hllngﬂﬂr assets

gible assets are gnised when it s probable thar the future economic benefits that are attributable to the assets will flow 1o the Company and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably.

The amertisation period and amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
d pattern of iption of future ic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated
as changes [n accounting estimates,

Intangible assets are amortised by using straight line method over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
maybe impaired.

Asset Category No. of years

Computer Software 5 Years

LOS Software 5 Years

LMS Software 8 Years

Supply Chain Software 4 Years

I xr i under dovel "

Direcily auribuiable costs that are capitalized as a part of software include an appropriate portion of rel overheads. Capitalised devel cosis are ded as
intangible assets and amortised from the point a1 which the asset is available for use.
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2.16

Sienificant ing policies (Continued)

Research expenditure and development expenditure that do not meet the above criteria are recognisad as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an assel in a subsequent period.

Gains or losses arismg from ds gnition of an intangible asset are d as the difference b the net di '] ds and the carving amoms of the asset and are
recognized in the statement of profit and Joss when the assel is derecognized.

p of non-financial assets
on-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impaiment Joss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. For the purpeses of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event. it is probable thar an outflow of embodying
economic benefits will be required 1o setile the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the Companys best estimate of the expenditure required 1o settle the obligation ar the reporting date and are discounted to present value where the
effect is material using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best est of the aderaty guired to sertle the present obligation as ar the bakince sheet date, taking into accomnt the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Contingent Habilities

Contingent liabilities are p “ubhgntmnswhomenstﬂlcemﬂheoonﬁrmadomybyunceﬂamﬁﬁmevemsormmubhgmmswbemlh:umshofmwmhmﬁlsn
mtpmbablemmmorbesehamymeamd Contingent Labilities are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of 2 ic benefit is remote.
Eamings per share

The Company reporis basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on Eamings per share. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the
year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted age pumber of equity shares oulstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable 1o equity shareholders and the weighted age number of shares

ouistanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. In compuring the dilutive earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are
dilutive and that either reduces the eamings per share or increases loss per share are included.

Employee Benefits

i) Short-term employee benefifs

The distinction between short term and long-term employee benefits is based on expected timing of settlement rather than the cmplovee's entitlement benefits. All employee
benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term benefits. Such benefits include salaries, wages, boous, short term compensated
absences, awards, exgratia, performance pay etc. and are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

ii) Post-Employment Benefits
The employee’s graiuity scheme is Company’s defined benefit plan. The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plans is determined based on the actuarial
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of the Balance sheet.

Defined benefit employee costs comprising cirent service cost, past service cost, iterest cost implicit in defined benefit employee cost and actuarial gains or losses.

R iing of Il gains and losses, are recognised immediately in the Bak Sheet with a corresponding debit or credil 1o retained earnings through
OCImI:hepamdmwhanh!heyom Re-measurements are not reclassified to the profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Current service cost, past service cost, interest cost implicit in defined benefit employee cost are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as employee benefits expense.

iii. Other long-term employment henefiis:
The Company A lated leaves and long term incentives based on the acruarial valiation using the projected unit credit method a1 the year-end.

a) Defined Contribution Plan

The Company’s contribution paid/payable during the year towards Provident and other funds is charged to statement of profit and loss in the yeur in which employee renders the
related service.

b) Defined Benefit Plan

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, s non funded defined benefit plin covering eligible employees. Vesting for gratuity occurs upon completion of five years of
service.

Details of the unfinded defined benefit plans for its employees are given in note 5.09 which is as certitied by the actuary using projected unit credit method.

iv) Compensated Absences

Themphyusof:heCmnpmymenuhdwmmmdmwh:hmhnmm fating and non- lating i mature. The exp i cost of accumulali
mp is i ‘byacmnmlwhmnummpm,ecledumcmdnm:ﬂ:odIb:lheumsademuhnzmthallusaccmhmdasaxﬂumhmﬂnudﬂe.
Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relotes to items directly recognized in
equity or in OCL

Current income fax

Current income fax assets and labilities are d at the P i 10 be d from or paid to the taxation suhorities; on the basis of the taxable profits
computed for the currem ing period in dance with Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used 1 compute the amouni are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items ,‘ d in other comprehensive income or directly in equity is gnised in other comprehensive income or in equity. respectively. and
not in the statement ofl’mﬁl and Loss. Managy periodically b positions taken in the tax retarns with respect to situations in which applicable 1ax regulations are

subject to interpr and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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2 Significant ing policies (Continued)
Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and Habilitics are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences

arising between the iax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or lishility in 2 transaction that is nof a usiness combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the fime of the taacton.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the of profit and loss is recognised outside the profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised i comrelation to the
underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax Habilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax nssels against current tax Gabilities and the deferred taxes relate
to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

217 Leases
The Company as a lessee
The Company rhether a ins a fease, at inception ofa . A confract is. or ins, a lease if the ys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset. the Company assesses
whether: (1) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (2) the Comp has sut ially all of the ic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the

lease and (3) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (*ROU™) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements i which it is a
lessee, except for leases wnh a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases: For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the
lease asan On & straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain kase arrangements inclnde the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities inclodes these options when it is
reasonably certain that they will be exercised.
The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease [iability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the

commencement date of the lease plus any inirial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accunmlated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

mmmqsmmuymedumdmadzpmmof&ﬁmnm The lease p are dn d using Inc I b g rates
of the Company. Lease liabilities are d with a P dj 1o the related r@nul’nseassel if the Comp h its i whether & will
exmseunex.lmmoralermmsmnnpllunlmtnbdnmsrermnammdalfsuvaheanhehnmshaﬂdsnewchlhe-m ponding mypact wdered m the of

profit and loss as interest charge/ income.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately p d in the Balance Sheet..

218 Employee Share Based Plan
Share-based compensation benefits are provided to the employees through the Employee Stock Option Scheime 2019 (*Plan"). The fair value of options determined at the grant
date of the equity-settied share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period with a comesponding wredit 1o share opiioms oulstanding reserve,
‘based on the Company’s cstimate of the shares that will cventually vest and adjusted for the effect of service conditions.

The 101al expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are 1o be satisfied. At the end of each period, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The stock options granted to employees are measured at the fair value of the options at the grant date. The fair value of the options is treated as discount and accounted as
employee compensation cost over the vesting period on @ straight-line basis. The amount recognised as expense in each year is arrived at based on the number of grants
expected to vest, If a grant lapses after the vesting period, the cunwmlative discount recognised as expense in respect of such grant is transferred to the general reserve within
equity.

2.19 Segment Reporting
The Company is primarily d in the bus: of financing and accordingly there are no separate reportable segments as per Ind AS 108 dealing with Opemiing segment.

2.20 Revenue Recognition
Recognition of Interest income
= Interest income and exp r din of profir and Joss inchudes mterest on financial assets and Eabilities d at rsed cost calcubsted on an effectve
interest basis. Fee and conunission income and expense that are integnal 10 the eflective mterest rate on a financinl asset or financial Eability are inchoded in the efisctive interest
rate. The amortization of income and expenses for financial assets under EIR approach is done on a systematic basis that exactly disconnts estimated farre cash flows of the
finuncial asset through the expected life of the financial asset.

* The interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit impaired financial assets, (i.e. at the amortised cost of the financial asset
before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance), For credit-impaired financial assets the interest income is calculated applying the EIR to the amortised cost of the credit:
impaired financial asset (Le. the gross carrying amount less the allowances for ECLs).

Fee income
* Fees camned by the Company which are not directly attributable to disborsal of loans arc recognised in the statement of profit and loss as and when camed.

* The Company has applied Ind AS 115 Revenne recognition accounting standard for preparation of these financial Ind AS 115 Revenwe from contracts with

customers outlines a single comprehensive model of ting for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
The Company recognises revenue from coniracts with customers based on a five step mode] as set out in Ind AS 115:

Step |: Identify contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the ion price 10 the perfc bligations in the contract
Step 5: Recognise revenme when (or as) the Group satisfies a per b

P U

Syndication, advisory & other Fees
Syndication, advisory & other fiees are recognised as income when the performance obligation as per the conract with customer is fulfilled and when the right 1o receive the
payment against the services has been established.

Recognition of Profit/loss on sale of investments
Profit/loss on sale of investments is recognised on irade date basis. Profit/loss on sale of mutuat fund anits is determined based on the first in first out (FIFQ) method,

Net gain/(loss) on Fair value changes:
Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as fair value through the profit or loss, held by the Company on the balance sheer date is recognised as a Fair
valie gain or loss as a gain or expense respectively.
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Significant ing policies (Continued)
Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reporfed using the indirect iethod, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferral or accruals of
past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregaied.

Crifical Accounting Esfimates and Judgements
The preparation of the Company’s fi ial QU T to make jud; I and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,

expenses, assets and Habilities, and the mpanying discl and the disclosure of comingent liabilities. Uncertainty abowt these assamptions and estimates could resnlt in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in the foture periods.

Critical Ac ing Esti and J

(Continned)

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment 10

rhemrmngmnnms of assets and habllnws within the next fmammlw are described below. The Company based its assnmptions and esti onp ilable when
the s 33l . Existing ci and Pl Mmmhmmwhmwmm’
cu'cmnsmmesamnglhﬂmlt)mndﬂ)emloflhe(' Such changes are reflected in the aptions when they occur.

Judgemcm i mquued by umnzgernent in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining an impainnent loss for loans and advances. In
estimating these cash flows, the Company makes judgements about the borrower’s financial situation and the net realisable vatue of collateral, if any. These esti are based
on assumptions about a number of factors incuding forward looking information, and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the impairment allowance.

Themsmfﬂnhﬁmdhemﬁtplmsmdodﬁpuﬂwwmeﬁ:smdmemmnfdxnummmdenmmdm 1l valuation. An actuanal vah
mvolves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future saliry increases,
mnahryralesandﬁureposlrewemenlnwdlwlheneﬁl increase. Due to the plexities involved in the valation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is

highly sensitive to ch in these All ions are reviewed at each ing date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate rate, gement i the interest rates of government bonds in
currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation and extrapolated as needed along the yield curve 1o correspond with the expected term of

the defined benefit obligation.

The mortality rate i based on publicly available mostality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at i k in resp to demographic changes. Future sabary
increases are based on expected future mflarion rates for the country.

Further details about defined benefit obligations are provided in Note 5.09

= lives ol lant and equi; at and i assels
The Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each reporting period or even earlier in case, circumstances
change such that the amount recorded value of an asset may not be recoverable.

¥ ' Tuding the carry forward of unused rax credits and any unused tax josses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised o the extent that it i probable that taxsble profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forwand of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Demm recog.uudﬁ\nll dech:tihle

Critical A ing Estil and Judg (Continred)

E. Fair value instrument

The fair value of financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid (o transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advaniageous) market at the measurement date under current ma.rket conditions (L.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using

snother valuation techmique. When the fiir values of fi ] assets and fi tal Eahilives ded m the kubance sheet canoot be derived from active markets, they are
daammdmmlwmofwhmmtmhmslhl mhdelh:matvahmnnmdek The inpuss 10 these mwdels are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, esti is § in ishing fair values. Jud; and esti inchude iderations of liquidity and model inputs related to items such as

credit risk (both own and counterpary), fnndsng vahie ad,uslmems, currclamnand volatility. For further details abowt determination of fair value please see Note - 5.02.

E. Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial asset depends upon the resulis of the solely payment of principal and interest (SPPI) and the business model test. The Company
determmes :he business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial asset are managed together 10 achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes

ting all rek evidence mchuding how the performunce of the asset 1s evaluated and their perft 'lhen&slhuﬁctﬂr[uinmenfd:
assﬂsmhwlhsemmmgedmdhuwﬁ:mp!suﬁhassﬂsm mp d. The Comp financial assets d at ed or fir valoe through
other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior 1o their maturity 1o understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of
1he business for which the asset was held.
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NOTE 3.01 : Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 6,932.45 3,367.93
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 14.,506.43 9.802.39
21,438.88 13.170.32
NOTE 3.02 : Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Particulars As at 31 March 2023  As at 31 March 2022
Deposits with oriEinal maturity of more than three months 1,022.19 1.015.42
1,022.19 1,015.42
NOTE 3.03 : Trade receivables
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Trade receivables (Unsecured - considered ﬁood) - 43.74
= 43.74
Refer Note 6.06 for ageing schedule
There are no dues from private company in which director(s) of the Company is a director(s) or member(s)
NOTE 3.04 : Loans (At amortised cost)
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
(A)
Business Loan 3,69,842.26 2,30,590.06
Employee Loan 7.80 16.03
Total - Gross 3,69,850.06 2,30,606.09
Less: Provision for expected credit loss (1,277.18) (697.70)
Total - Net 3,68,572.88 2,29.908.39
(B)
Secured by tangible assets 3,41,094.27 2,25,074.06
Unsecured 28,755.79 5,532.03
Total - Gross 3.,69,850.06 2,30,606.09
Less: Provision for expected credit loss (1,277.18) (697.70)
Total - Net 3,68,572.88 2,29.908.39
(©)
(i) Loans in India
Public sector - -
Others 3,69,850.06 2,30,606.09
Total - Gross 3,69,850.06 2,30,606.09
Less: Provision for expected credit loss (1,277.18) (697.70)
Total - Net 3.68,572.88 2,29.908.39
(ii) Loans outside India - -
Total - Net C (i)+(ii) 3,98,572.88 2,29.908.39
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(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)
NOTE 3.05 : Investments

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Mutual funds (At fair value through P&L) 13,002.02 8,789.03
Debt securities - Non convertiable debentures (At amortised cost) 21,975.60 2,791.29
Debt securities - Commercial papers (At amortised cost) 1,488.92 -
Debt securities - Pass through certificates (At amortised cost) 2,720.22 4,606.56
Total - Gross 39,186.76 16,186.88
Investments in India 39,186.76 16,186.88
Investments outside India = -
Total - Gross 39,186.76 16,186.88
Long term investments 9,203.81 7,397.85
Short term investments 29,982.95 8,789.03
Total - Gross 39,186.76 16,186.88
Less: Provision for expected credit loss (84.98) (2.58)
Total - Net 39,101.78 16,184.30
NOTE 3.06 : Other financial assets
Particulars As at 31 March 2023  As at 31 March 2022
Security deposit 540.21 241.23
Sundry Receivables (considered good) 193.88 35.56
Advance to lenders 366.64 -
1,100.73 276.79
NOTE 3.07 : Current tax assets (net)
Particulars As at 31 March 2023  As at 31 March 2022
Advance Tax (net of provision for tax) 445.86 370.17
445.86 370.17
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(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)
NOTE 3.08 : Deferred tax assets (net)

Particulars As at31 March 2023  As at 31 March 2022
Deferred Tax Assets

Disallowances u/s 43 B of Income Tax Act 970.05 73.42
Provision for expected credit loss 375.99 231.86
Preliminary Expenses w's 35D of Income tax Act, 1961 - 6.80
Fair value of Employee Loan 0.36 0.20
Fair value of Security deposit 4.02 10.40
Fair value of Lease Liability 24.01 74.37
Fair value of Loan given 390.82 351.59
Fair value of Investment in Debt instruments (CP+NCDs) 50.56 0.44
Total (A) 1,815.81 749.08
Deferred tax liability

Depreciation on fixed assets 10.52 76.54
Fair value of investment in mutual funds 0.67 19.82
Fair value of borrowings 511.80 -
Total (B) 522.99 96.36

Net deferred tax asset (A-B) 1,292.82 652.72
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

NOTE 3.09 : Properly plant and equipment

. ight of use Leasehold Furniture & " Office

Fagrenie R:uilding Improvements Fixture Vet Equipment Compatces e
Cost as at 31 March 2021 780.30 344.65 2.89 105.67 16.36 42.08 1,291.95
Additions 51.83 - 1.59 - 6.31 49.53 109.26
Disposals (71.86) - - - - - (71.86)
Cost as at 31 March 2022 76027 344.65 4.48 105.67 22.67 91.61 1,329.35
Additions - 1.00 6.32 - 18.43 106.76 132,51
Disposals (51.83) - (0.42) - (0.61) (0.03) (52.89)
Cost as at 31 March 2023 708.44 345.65 10.38 105.67 40.49 198.34 1,408.97
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2021 324.71 160.38 0.65 31.72 5.48 16.77 539.70
Depreciation charged during the year 165.94 71.31 0.30 23.55 4.08 20.13 285.31
Disposals (19.16) - - - - - (19.16)
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2022 471.49 231.69 0.95 55.27 9.56 36.90 805.85
Depreciation charged during the year 164.93 71.50 0.80 23.55 5.88 41.58 308.24
Disposals (18.14) o (0.14) = (0.52) (0.03) (18.83)
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2023 618.28 303.19 1.61 78.82 1491 78.45 1,095.26
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2021 455.59 184.27 2.24 73.95 10.89 25.31 752.25
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2022 288.78 112.96 3.53 56.40 13.11 54.71 523.49
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2023 90.16 42.46 8.77 26.85 25.58 119.89 313.71

1. For Depreciation policy refer accounting policy no. 2.09

2. Title deeds of Immovable Properties not held in name of the Company:
There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) whose title

deed is not held in the name of the company.
3. CWIP ageing and Completion schedule:

The Company does not have any CWIP as at 31 March, 2023 and 31 March, 2022 and hence disclosure of CWIP ageing schedule and CWIP completion schedule is not

applicable.

4. Benami properties:

No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of

1988) and rules made thereunder.
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NOTE 3.10 : Intangible assets

Particulars Softwares Total
Cost as at 31 March 2021 415.17 415.17
Additions 46.62 46.62
Disposals - -
Cost as at 31 March 2022 461.79 461.79
Additions 4.50 4.50
Disposals - -
Cost as at 31 March 2023 466.29 466.29
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2021 44.75 44.75
Amortisation recognised for the year 80.03 80.03
Disposals = ”
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2022 124.78 124.78
Amortisation recognised for the year 85.36 85.36
Disposals - -
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2023 210.14 210.14
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2021 370.42 370.42
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2022 337.01 337.01
Net carm'ng amount as at 31 March 2023 256.15 256.15

1. For amortisation policy refer accounting policy no. 2.10
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NOTE 3.11 : Other non-financial assets

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March

2022
Prepaid expenses 226.01 173.17
Advance to suppliers 18.76 7.27
GST receivable (net) 19.67 36.93

264.44 217.37
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NOTE 3.12 : Trade payables

Particulars As at 31 March 2023  As at 31 March 2022

Dues to Micro, small and medium enterprises 17.73 9.72

Dues to Others 144 48 124 37
162.21 134.09

Refer note 5.08 relating to dues to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises

Refer note 6.07 for ageing schedule

NOTE 3.13 : Debt securities

Particulars As at 31 March 2023  As at 31 March 2022

At amortised cost

y s

Redeemable non convertible debentures 98,094.98 45,616.09

(Refer note (a) below)

Commercial paper (net of unamortised discount)

2o ,647.17 ,809.
repayable within next twelve months 118471 LL309.38
Total 1,09,742.15 57,425.47
Debt securities in India 1,09,742.15 57,425.47
Debt securities outside India = =
Total 1,09,742.15 57,425.47
Secured 98,094.98 45,616.09
Unsecured 11,647.17 11,809.38
Total 1,09,742.15 57.425.47
¥ include interest accrued but not due Rs.3,130.19 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs.848.22 Lakhs)

Funds borrowed have been utilised for the purposes for which they were borrowed
{(a) Non Convertible Debenture
Privately placed Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures (NCDs)
Terms of repayment
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Redeemable within Rate “w Rate of interest
>=§.00% <9.88% >=8.00% <9.88%
Amount Amount
Above 60 Months = =
48-60 Months - -
36-48 Months 7,500.00 -
24-36 Months 9.327.35 22,440.46
12-24 Months 50,992.45 18,399.78
0-12 Months 30,275.18 4,775.85
Total 98,094.98 45,616.09
Nature of Security:

Security is created in favour of the Debenture Trustee, as follows:
Secured by first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on present and fu
investments.

ivables, book debts, cash & cash equivalents and liquid
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NOTE 3.14 : Borrowings (other than debt securitics)

Particulars Asat 31 March 2023  As at 31 March 2022
At amortised cost

Term loans

Term loans from banks® (Refer note (a) below) 1,67,733.95 91,107.16
Term loans from NBFCs” (Refer note (b) below) 27,787.93 24,860.93
Loans repayable on demand

Bank overdrafis - -
Working capital demand loans from banks - 999.99
Total 1,95,521.88 1.16.,968.08
Borrowings in India 1,95.521.88 1,16,968.08
Borrowings outside India - -
Total 1.95,521.88 1,16.968.08
Secured borrowings 1,95,521.88 1,16.968.08
Unsecured borrowings = =
Total 1.95.521.88 1,16.968.08

¥ include interest acerued but not due Rs.154.66 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs.120.37 Lakhs)
* include interest accrued but not due Rs.77.66 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs.74.40 Lakhs)

(a) Term loan from banks (TL):

Terms of repayment

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Repayment within Rﬁe o!hm Rate of interest
>7.56% <= 10.88% >7.25% <=9.25%
w Amount

Above 60 Months - -

48-60 Months 984.95 -
36-48 Months 5,851.22 4.439.19
24-36 Months 2927497 14,175.24
12-24 Months 55,931.26 29,725.05
0-12 Months 75,691.55 42,767.68
Total 1,67,733.95 91,107.16

Nature of Security:

Security against facilities from bank (including term loan and demand loan):
Secured by first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on present and future receivables, book debts, cash & cash equivalents and liquid investments.

(b) Term loan from NBFCs (TL):

Terms of repayment

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Rigaysisnt withib Rate of interest Rate of interest
>9.28% <= 10.65% >B.00% <= 9.40%

Above 60 Months 3 -
48-60 Months - 920.19
36-48 Months 2,332.10 1.800.00
24-36 Months 4.883.33 3,717.00
12-24 Months 7.151.09 5,082.67
0-12 Months 13.421.41 13.341.07
Total 27,787.93 24,860.93

Nature of Security:

Security against term loan from NBFCs :
Secured by first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on present and future receivables, book debts, cash & cash equivalents and liguid investments.

(¢) Funds borrowed have been utilised for the purpose for which they were sanctioned.

(d) Quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts except
fo the extent of following adjustments:

(1) EIR adjustment as per Ind AS regulations

(ii) adjustments made during the course of audit (including limited review) post submission of the return

(e) The Company has not defaulied in the repayment of any borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year. The Company has
not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or povernment or any government authority.
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NOTE 3.15 : Subordinated Debt (Unsecured)

Particulars As at 31 March 2023  As at 31 March 2022
At amortised cost
Subordinated (Tier II) redeemable non convertible debentures® 6.317.82 3
(Refer note (a) below) i
Total 6317.82 -
Debt securities in India 6.317.82 2
Debt securities outside India - -
Total 6,317.82 -
Secured - -
Unsecured 6,317.82 =
Total 6,317.82 -
* include interest accrued but not due Rs.369.00 Lakhs (Previous Year Nil)
(a) Privately placed subordinated (Tier IT) redeemable non convertible debentures (NCDs)
Terms of repayment
As at 31 March 2023  As at 31 March 2022
— Rate of interest Rate of interest
Redeemable within L
10.25%
Amount Amount
Above 60 Months = =
48-60 Months 5,948.82 -
36-48 Months - -
24-36 Months - -
12-24 Months = =
0-12 Months 369.00 -
Lotal 6,317.82 -
NOTE 3.16 : Other financial labilities
Particulars As at 31 March 2023  As at 31 March 2022
Book overdraft 9,330.43 s
Employee benefits payable 3,042.55 1,731.93
Lease obligation 95.40 291.18
Security deposit taken 204.73 277.25
12,673.11 2,300.36
NOTE 3.17 : Provisions
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Provision for employee benefits:
- Gratuity 79.86 45.04
- Leave encashment 59.45 51.03
- Long term benefits 195.65 195.65
Others:
-___Expected credit loss on undrawn loan commitments 131.74 220,93
466.70 512.65
NOTE 3.18 : Other non-financial liabilities
Particulars As at 31 March 2023  As at 31 March 2022
Statutory dues payable 149.32 183.68
Advances from Customers 3.923.29 1,492.89
4,072.61 1,676.57
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NOTE 3.1% ; Equity share capital

a.  Details of authorised, issued and subseribed share capital

o .

Particalars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Authorised capital
Equity shares of Z10/- each 1,00,00,00,000 1,00,000.00 1,00,00,00,000 1,00,000.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid ep
Equuty shares of T10/- each fully paid 88,40,22,266 88,402.23 75.98,55.835 75,985.58
Total “M&“ 83I402.23 TSI!ISISSIBS 75985_58
b. Reconciliation of number of shares at the beginnigg and at the end of the year
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 75,98,55,835 75,985.58 63,99,69,828 63.996.98
Add: Shares issued during the year 12,41,66,431 12.416.65 11,98,86,007 11,988.60
Less: Shares bought back during the year - - - -
Total 88,40,22,266 88.402.23 75,98&5,835 75,985.58
c.  Particulars of shares held bx holding Company
Name of Shareholder Relationship As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

No of equity No of equity shares
sharesheld ___Pereentee hetg Pereemse

Arka Financial Holdings Private Limited* Holding Company 88,40,04,815 99.998% 75,98,40,835 99.998%

* Number of shares include 6 shares held by nominee shareholders on behalf of Arka Financial Holdings Private Limited

d. Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% of the share canital

Name of Shareholder Relationship As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No of eq; 3 No of equity shares
! held Percentage held Percentage
Arka Financial Holdings Private Limited* Holding Company 88,40,04,815 99.998% 75,98,40,835 99.998%

* Number of shares include 6 shares held by nominee shareholders on behalf of Arka Financial Holdings Private Limited

e.  Particulars of shares held by promoters

“As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
o ! = 5
Promoter name No. of Shares %of total shares e i % No. of Shares %of total shares ° Change during
the year the year
Arka Financial Holdings Private Limited® 88.40,04.815 99.998% 16.34% 75,98,40 835 99.998% 100.00%

* Number of shares include 6 shares held by nominee shareholders on behalf of Arka Financial Holdings Private Limited

f.  Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Z 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to proportionate vote on
basis of his contribution to fully paid up share capital. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the proportionate amount of
contribution made by the equity shareholder to the total equity share capital.

g.  Objective for managing capital

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is meeling the capital adequacy requirements of
the local regulator, Reserve Bank of India (RBI). The adequacy of the Company’s capital is monitored using, among other measures, the regulations
issued by RBL
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NOTE 3.20 : Other equity

Particulars As at 31 March 2023  As at 31 March 2022
Statutory reserves u/s 45-IC of The RBI Act, 1934 2,337.15 1,109.86
Securities premium reserve 4,631.25 2,147.92
Share options outstanding account 927.21 793.18
Retained earm'ngs 8,555.12 3,645.96
16,450.73 7,696.92
3.20.A Other equity movement
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Statutory reserves u/s 45-1C of The RBI Act, 1934
Opening Balance 1,109.86 459.55
Add : Transferred from retained earnings 1,227.29 650.31
Closing Balance 2,337.15 1,109.86
Securities premium reserve
Opening Balance 2,147.92 1,134.70
Add : Premium collected on share allotment 2,483.33 1,013.22
Closing Balance 4,631.25 2,147.92
Share options outstanding account
Opening Balance 793.18 699.48
Less : Transferred to Retained Ernings (2.75)
Add/(Less) : Movement during the year 136.78 93.70
Closing Balance 927.21 793.18
Retained earnings
Opening Balance 3,645.96 1,044.45
Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year 6,136.46 3,251.66
Add: Other Comprehensive income (2.76) 0.16
Add: ESOP reserves 2,75 -
Less: Transfer to statutory reserve u/s 45-IC of The RBI Act, 1934 (1,227.29) (650.31)
Closing Balance 8,555.12 3,645.96

1. Pursuant to the provision of section 45(IC) of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, the Company has transferred % 1,227.29

Lakhs (Previous Year : X 650.31 Lakhs) towards statutory reserve fund.

2. During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has issued 12,41,66,431 equity shares of face value of ¥ 10 per
equity share at a premium of I 2 per equity share amounting to ¥ 14,899.97 lakhs to its holding company 'Arka Financial

Holdings Private Limited' on rights basis.

3. Refer note no. 5.10 for disclosure on Employee Stock option Plan (ESOP).
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NOTE 4.01 : Revenue from operations

Paviiibes For the year euded 31 For the year ended
‘March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost:
Interest on loans
- _ Financing business 33,188.01 18,153.44
-  Employee loan 151 2.46
Interest on investments
- Debentures/bonds and Pass through certificates 1,368.21 468.30
- Commercial papers / Certificate of Deposits 206.12 303.98
Interest on Deposits
- Deposits with banks 285.75 260.09
- Security deposits 24.45 22.06
Total 35,074.05 19,210.33
Fees and commission income
- Syndication, advisory & other fees 81025 503.40
Total £10.25 503.40
Net gain on sale of investments
- Net gain on sale of investments 1,182.01 380.25
Total 1,182.01 380.25
Net gain on fair value changes of investments
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
- Investment in mutual funds - 78.76
Total - 78.76
Fair value changes
- Realised - (7.94)
- Unrealised - 86.70
Total = 78.76
NOTE 4.02 : Other income
Parelilai For the year ended 31 For the year ended
March 2023 31 March 2022
Miscellaneous income
- Other income 222.57 136.66
222.57 136.66
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NOTE 4.03 : Finance costs

. " For the year ended 31 For the year ended
faniae March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:

Interest expense on borrowings

Interest on term loan from banks and NBFCs 12,579.37 5,781.86

Interest on overdraft facility from banks 13.85 9.04

Interest on lease liability 23.32 39.87

Interest expense on debt securities

Debentures 4,941.34 2,193.28

Commercial papers 891.81 679.96

Interest expense on subordinated debt 369.00 -

Other interest expense

Bank charges & other related costs 798.59 469.73
19,617.28 9,173.74

NOTE 4.04 : Net loss on fair value changes

. For the year ended 31 For the year ended
Particulars March 2023 31 March 2022
Net loss on fair value changes 76.10 -

76.10 -
NOTE 4.05 : Impairment on financial instruments

. For the year ended 31 For the year ended

P i ]

articulars March 2023 31 March 2022
Impairment on financial instruments at amortised cost:
Impairment on loans
Provision for expected credit loss 579.47 416.81
Write offs (net of recovery) 26.09 -
Impairment on investments
Provision for expected credit loss 82.39 (34.34)
Impairment on others
Undrawn loan commitments (89.19) 175.14

598.76 557.61
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NOTE 4.06 : Employee benefit expenses

¢ For the year ended 31 For the year ended
Particulers F;;mm 31 Miarch 2022
Salaries, other allowances and bonus 5,976.09 4.434.42
Gratuity expenses 32.70 20.97
Leave encashment 15.95 26.45
Contribution to provident and other funds 115.61 80.05
Share based payment expense 136.78 9425
Staff welfare expenses 34.82 20.13
6,311.95 4.676;‘2_7_
NOTE 4.07 : Depreciation and amortisation expenses
s For the year ended 31 For the vear ended
Enrticuluey ¥ March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 308.24 285.31
Amortisation of intangible assets 85.36 80.03
393.60 365.3_4_
NOTE 4.08 : Other expenses
For the ended 31 For the year ended
. y:mhms 31 March 2022
Rent 78.07 3.10
Insurance 105.44 51.82
Other repairs and maintenance 45.51 41.77
Travelling and conveyance 146.05 52.68
Communication expenses 8.14 6.63
Printing and stationery 14.83 4.92
Professional charges 690.67 339.72
Membership and subscription 33.50 14.44
Auditor's remuneration 19.71 21.10
Technology expenses 243.57 253.85
Custodian charges 0.83 1.80
Directors' sitting fees 28.25 17.20
Electricity charges 12.56 9.55
Office expenses 50.97 29.18
Postage and courier 711 255
ROC Exp 0.26 0.43
GST expenses 394.71 210.33
Stamp duty 27.83 13.19
Housekeeping and security charges 29.98 25.00
Corporate social responsibilities expenses 70.93 28.56
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Asset 0.38 -
Branding and advertisement expenses 1.42 -
‘21010.72 1,127.82
Payment to auditor includes:
a) as statutory auditors 17.20 17.00
b) for certification related matters 1.98 4.10
c) for other services 0.53 s
Total 19.71 21.10
Details for expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility:
a) Gross amount required to be spent during the year 70.93 28.55
b) Amount spent during the year:
- Expenses paid in cash 70.93 28.56
- Expenses yet to be paid for - -
Total 70.93 28.56
c) Nature of expenditure:
- Capital expenditure (asset acquisition/creation) - -
- Revenue expenditure
The donation is towards the expenses related to activities for admission salaries 70.93 28.56
professional fees for education services, library subscriptions, m
Total NN\ 70.93 28.56

=
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NOTE 4,09 : Income Tax
Tax expense

(a) Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss

Prtbekiais For the year ended 31 For the year ended
March 2023 31 March 2022
Current tax expense
Current income tax 2,450.07 1:535.13
(Excess)/short provision related to earlier years 333.12 -
2,783.19 1,535.13
Deferred tax expense
‘Origination and reversal of temporary differences (639.18) (378.17)
(639.18) (378.17)
Tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 2,144.01 1,156.96
(b) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI)

. For the year ended 31 For the year ended
R March 2023 31 March 2022
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit liability (asset) (0.93) 0.05
Deferred tax cha:ged to OC1 {0.93) 0.05
(c) Reconciliation of tax expense

: For the year ended 31 For the year ended
e March 2023 31 March 2022
Accounting profit before income tax expense 8,280.47 4.408.62
Tax @ 25.168% (31 March 2022 : 25.168%) 2,084.03 1,109.56
Difference in tax rate due to:

- Effect of non-deductible expenses 59.28 40.59
- Excess/ short provision related to earlier years and Others 0.70 6.80
Total Tax Expenses 2,144.01 1,156.95
Effective tax rate 25.89% 26.24%

The Company does not have unused tax losses
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NOTE 5.01 : Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders (after adjusting profit impact of
dilutive potential equity shares, if any) by the aggregate of weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year and the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential
equity shares into equity shares.

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

1.  Profit attributable to equity holders (A)

Profit attributable to equity holders for basic and diluted EPS 6,136.46 3,251.66
II. Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Basic EPS (B) 85,53,83,033 72,46,33,323
Il. Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Diluted EPS 86,36,11,131 73,06,89,663

©

Basic earnings per share (%) 0.72 0.45

<2

Diluted eanﬁngs per share (%) 0.71 0.45
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(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

NOTE 5.02 : Financial instruments — Fair valaes

A. Accounting classification and fair values

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions , regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using a valuation technique.

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets including their levels in the fair value hierarchy:

As at 31 March 2023
Carrying amount Fair value

Fair value ﬂ'r'::g’;“ Level 1- Level2- Level 3 -

through Amortised Quoted price  Significant Significant

profit and :oﬂ:;rehwsi Cost Totd in active observable unobservable Temnl

loss Sl markets inputs inputs
Investments covered under
Ind AS 109
(a) Investments in Mutual Funds 13.002.02 - - 13,002.02 13,002.02 - - 13,002.02
(b) Investments in Debentures - - 21,975.60 21,975.60 21,975.60 - - 21,975.60
(¢) Investments in Commercial papers - - 1,488.92 1.488.92 - - 148892 1.488.92
(d) Investments in Pass through - - 2,720.22 2,720.22 - 2,720.22 2,720.22
certificates (PTCs)

Total 13,002.02 - 26,184.74 39,186.76 34,977.62 - 4,209.14 39,186.76
As at 31 March 2022
Carrying amount Fair value

Particulars

Fair value ;fr'::;:“ Level1- Level 2 - Level 3 -

through Amortised Quoted price  Significant Significant

profit and atuer S Cost Fotel in active observable unobservable Totil

loss s i markets inputs inputs

ve income
Investments covered under
Ind AS 109
(a) Investments in Mutual Funds 8,789.03 - - 8,789.03 8,789.03 - - 8,789.03
(b) Investments in Debentures = - 2,791.29 2,791.29 2,191.29 - - 2,791.29
(c) Investments in Commercial papers - - - o - - - -
(c) Investments in Pass through - - 4,606.56 4,606.56 - 4,606.56 4,606.56
certificates (PTCs)
Total 8,789.03 - 7,397.85 16,186.88 11,580.32 - 4,606.56 16,186.88

The management has assessed that the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, loans carried at amortised cost, other financial assets, trade
payables, borrowings, working capital demand loans and other current liabilities are a reasonable approximation to their fair value.
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NOTE 5.02 : Financial instruments — Fair values

B.

Fair value hierarchy

Ind AS 107, “Financial Instrument - Disclosure’ requires classification of the valuation method of financial instruments measured at fair value in the
Balance Sheet, using a three level fair-value-hierarchy (which reflects the significance of inputs used in the measurements). The hierarchy gives the
highest priority to un-adjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level | measurements) and lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair-value-hierarchy under Ind AS 107 are described below:

Level 1: Level | hierarchy inclades financial instraments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is defermined using valuation techniques which maximise the
use of observable market data and place limited reliance on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level. This is the case for
unlisted equity securities included in level 3.

NOTE 5.03 : Financial instruments risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments:
(A) Regulatory Risk;

(B) Credit Risk;

(C) Liquidity Risk;

(D) Operational Risk:

(E) Reputation Risk; and

(F) Strategic Risk

(A) Regulatory Risk;
The company being an NBFC shall have exposure to risk related to non-compliance to regulatory guidelines, laws as applicable. Such non-
compliance may result in levy of heavy penalties and fines by the regulator, as well as, reputational loss to the company. The risk can arise due
to non-compliance to applicable guidelines and/or lack of monitoring and follow-up on the implementation of applicable laws,

Mitigation:

« The compliance and legal / secretarial department shall submit a compliance certificate post ensuring adherence to applicable laws on quarterly
basis to the Risk Committee.

* The Board shall take note of the compliance certificate and Compliance officer shall report to Board in case of any material non-compliance.

* The Board shall do a regular review of risk and identifv gaps if any and take corrective actions.

(B) Credit Risk;
The company is subject to credit risk in terms of non-recovery of interest as well as principal amount of the money lent by the company to its
customers. Such risk can arise due to inadequate documentation or evaluation of the borrower, default by the existing borrowers, external factors
such as political volatility in the region of exposure concentration, amongst many other factors leading to loss of revenue for the company.

Mitigation:

* The company has formed a Credit procedures and policy to address the risk.

* Continuous monitoring mechanism is developed by adopting various checks and controls in the process.

+ The Company has set up a Credit Committee for approval of the lending in both Retail Operations and Wholesale lending, the decision by the
Credit Committee shall be binding on the Business Department. The Credit Committee is empowered to deploy, monitor, manage the funds of
the Company in terms of its charter as approved by the Board if the Company.

(C) Liquidity Risk;
The risk arises due to asset liability mismatch. The inadequacy of the company in increasing its asset base, managing any unplanned changes in
funding sources and meeting the financial commitments when required may result in non-liquidity.

Mitigation:

* The company has Asset Liability Management Policy in line with the RBI guidelines.

* The Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) is responsible for managing the risk arising out of exposures to interest rate changes and
mismatches between assets and liabilities.
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NOTE 5.03 : Financial instruments risk management (Continued)

(D) Operational Risk;

(E)

Operational risk is the risk arising out of failure of internal process, people and systems put in place by the company. Such risk may also arise
out of the external factors as well as internal control system failure defeating the core objective of the company operations.

Mitigation:

*« The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but it endeavours to manage these risks through a control framework and by
monitoring and responding to potential risks. Controls include maker-checker controls, effective segregation of duties, access. authorisation and
reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, such as the use of internal audit.

Reputation Risk;
The company being an NBFC is subject to reputational loss arising due to various other risks such as Regulatory non-compliance, Operational
breakdown or Borrower Dissatisfaction.

Mitigation:

* Company has formed HR Policy in order to address any concemns of the employees internally.

« Company has created Fair Practice Code which sets out the Grievance Redressal Mechanism in order to address customer concerns.

* The fair practice code also ensures that the company does not rely upon any coercive activifies in order to recover the money from borrowers.

Strategic Risk;
The risk arising out of non-responsiveness of business in adapting to internal as well as external environment. Such risk arises when the business
strategies are not flexible to factor in the macro factors.

Mitigation:

* The Board and Risk Committee are made ultimate responsible authorities in order to ensure that the risk in the organization are mitigated as
well as monitored.

* The Risk/ALCO committee are given responsibility of recommending the changes in the risk appetite of the company.

NOTE 5.04 : Capital Disclosure

The Company maintains adequate capital to cover risks inherent in the business and is meeting the capital adequacy requirements of our regulator,
Reserve Bank of India (RBI). The adequacy of the Company’s capital is monitored using. among other measures, the regulations issued by RBL

Company has complied in full with all its externally imposed capital requirements over the reported period.

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed capital requirements
and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value.

The Company maintains its capital structure in line with economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. The Board of directors
reviews the capital position on a regular basis.

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
CRAR - Tier I capital (%) 24.04% 30.57%
CRAR - Tier Il capital (%) 1.44% 0.34%
CRAR (%) 25.48% 30.92%
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-I1 capital (Z Lakhs) 6,000.00 Nil
Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments Nil Nil

Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) is not applicable to the Company as per RBI Master Directions 2016
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NOTE 5.05(A) : Related Party Disclosure as per Ind AS regulations
Related Party Disclosures, as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 (Ind AS 24) are given below:
A. Related Parties Relationship
(i) Name of the Related party and nature of relationship where control exists:

Sr. No. Related Party Category Company Name

1 Ultimate Holding Company Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited (w.e.f. 5 January 2022)

2  Holding Company Aska Financial Holdings Private Llmited (w.e.f. 5 January 2022)

3 Subsidiary Company of Holding Company Arka Investment Advisory Services Private Limited (w.e.f. 30 March 2022)

La-Gajjar Machineries Private Limited

4  Subsidiary Company of Ultimate Holding Company ~ Optiqua Pipes and Electricals Private Limited

Kirloskar Americas Corp, USA

5  Entity under common group Arka Credit Fund 1

(ii) Key Management Personnel and their relatives:

Sr. No. Name of KMPs Name of Relatives of KMPs Relationship

Vibha V. Bhandari Wife
Vatsal V Bhandari Son
Shivani Bhandari Son's Wife
Vandini V Bhandari Daughter

1 Vimal Bhandari (Executive Vice Chairman & CEO) et M i b il
Pushpa Bhandari Mother
Ashok Bhandari Brother
Asha Singhvi Sister
Vibha Doshi Sister
Jayashree Mehta Sister

(iii) Key Management Personnel of Ultimate Holding Company and their relatives:
Sr. No. Name of KMPs Name of Relatives of KMPs Relationship

Arti A. Kirloskar Wife
Gauri A. Kirloskar (Kolenaty) Daughter

1 Atul C. Kirloskar (Executive Chairman) Aditi A. Kirloskar (Sahni) Daughter
Rahul C. Kirloskar Brother
Suman C. Kirloskar Mother
Arti A. Kirloskar Mother
Atul C. Kirloskar Father

2 Gauri Kirloskar (w.c.£ 20 May 2022) Aditi A. Kirloskar (Sahni) Sister
Christopher Kolenaty Husband
Maya Kolenaty Daughter
Pia Kolenaty Daughter
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NOTE 5.05(A) : Related Party Disclosures (Continued)

B. Transactions with Related Parties

202223 2021-22
g Nature of the transaction / relationship / major parties Amount Amount
No. Amount  from major  Amount from major
parties parties
Capital Contribution received from
Holding Company 14,899 .68 12,999.76

1 Kiroskar Oil Engines Limited (Upto 4 Jan 2022 ) - 4.,999.76
Arka Financial Holdings Private Limited (w.e.f. 5 Jan 2022) 14,899.68 8,000.00
Total 14,899.68 14,899.68 12,999.76 12,999.76
Loan given to

2 Subsidiary Company of Ultimate Holding Company 321.23 -

Optiqua Pipes and Electricals Private Limited 32125 -
Total 321.23 321.23 - -
Loan repayment from

3 Subsidiary Company of Ultimate Holding Company 321.23 -

Optiqua Pipes and Electricals Private Limited 321.23 =
Total 321.23 321.23 - -
Interest & fees received on loan given

4 Subsidiary Company of Ultimate Holding Company 6.10 -

Optiqua Pipes and Electricals Private Limited 6.10 -
Total 6.10 6.10 = -
Interest expenses on NCD issued to

5 Key Management Personnel 13.16 14.44
Vimal Bhandari 13.16 14.44
Total 13.16 13.16 14.44 14.44
Expenses incurred on behalf of holding company 73.48 17.48

6 Arka Financial Holdings Private Limited 73.48 17.48
Total 73.48 73.48 17.48 17.48
Expenses incurred on behalf subsidiary company of holding company 32.37 -

7  Arka Investment Advisory Services Private Limited 32.37 -
Total %37 32.37 - =
Reimbursement of Expenses from holding company 15.01 8.26

8  Arka Financial Holdings Private Limited 15.01 8.26
Total 15.01 15.01 8.26 8.26
Managerial Remunerations:

9 Key Management Personnel 585.34 530.85
Vimal Bhandari 585.34 530.85
Total 585.34 585.34 530.85 530.85

Balances with related parties

1 Non convertible debentures issued 150.00 150.00
Vimal Bhandari 150.00 150.00
Total 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00

2 Receivable from holding company 114.22 25.73 7
Arka Financial Holdings Private Limited 11422 25.73
Total 114.22 114.22 25.73 25.73

3 Subsidiary Company of Holding Company 32.37 -

Arka Investment Advisory Services Private Limited 3237 -
Total 32.37 32.37 - -

Notes

As on 31st March 2023, the Company has approved in its Board Meeting, ¥ 5.000.00 Lakhs towards investments in Arka Credit
Fund I

The above compensation of the Company’s key managerial personnel does not include provision for leave encashment and
2 gratuity, as actuarial valuation of such provision for the Key Management Personnel is included in the total provision for Leave
encashment & gratuity.

3 The amounts are inclusive of GST wherever applicable.
Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Transaction entered into with related party are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. There have
been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

NOTE 5.06 : Contingent liabilities and Commitments

Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Contingent liabilities Nil Nil

Capital commitments:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 21.24 8

Loans sanctioned not yet disbursed 39.827.94 45,589.97

Investment in Arka Credit Fund I 5.000.00 =

NOTE 5.07 : Leases
Where the Company is a lessee

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notified Ind AS 116, the new leases accounting standard on 30 March 2019. Ind AS 116

come into force on 1 April 2019.

Ind AS 116 have replaced the previous guidance in Ind AS 17, ‘Leases’. Ind AS 116 defines a lease as a contract, or part of a
confract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to recognize assets and liabilities arising from all leases (except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets) in the Balance sheet. The Company have capitalised all assets currently held under operating leases. Operating lease
expenses have been replaced by a depreciation expense on Right of Use assets recognised and an interest expense as the incremental

borrowing rate in the lease liabilities unwinds.

Disclosures as required by Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’ are given below:
(A) Lease liability movement

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Lease liability at begnning of the year 291.18 439.82
Add: Interest on lease liability 23.32 39.87
Add: Lease liability recognised during the year - 50.59
Less: Lease rental payments (180.85) (184.17)
Less: Lease liability de-recognised during the year (38.26) (54.92)
Lease liability at the end of the year 95.40 291.18
(B) Future lease cashflow for all leased assets
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Minimum Lease Payments:
Not later than one year 98.84 181.90
Later than one year but not later than five years - 143.70
Later than five years & -
(C) Maturity analysis of lease liability
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Lease liability:
Less than 12 months 95.40 158.24
More than 12 months = 132.95
NOTE 5.08 : Dues to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
a. Principal and interest amount remaining unpaid (not due) 17.73 9.72

b. Interest due thereon remaining unpaid

c. Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day

d. Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding interest specified under the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act,2006)

. Interest accrued and remaining unpaid
f.  Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises
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NOTE 5.09 : Disclosure pursuant to Employee benefits
Defined contribution plan (Provident fund):

The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards employee provident fund to government administered provident fund scheme which is a
defined contribution plan. The Company's contribution is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the
employee renders the related service.

The provident fund payment recognised as expenses and included in Employee benefit expenses during the current vear 2.115.61 Lakhs (March 2022: ¥ 80.05
Lakhs).
Defined benefit plans: The Company has following Defined benefit plans:

A Gratuity

B Compensated Absences

C Long term incentive plan (LTIP) (upto March 31, 2022)

Based on Ind AS 19 “Employee Benefits’ notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, the following disclosures have been made as required by the
standard:

Particulars At Avst
31 March 202331 March 2022
A () Gratuity:
Amount recognised in the balance sheet
Present value of the obligation as at the end of the year 79.86 45.04
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year = =
Net (asset) / liability to be recognised in the balance sheet 79.86 4504
(ii) Compensated Absences:
Amount recognised in the balance sheet
Present value of the obligation as at the end of the year 59.45 51.03
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year - -
Net (asset) / liability to be recognised in the balance sheet 59.45 51.03
(iii) Long term incentive plan:
Amount recognised in the balance sheet
Present value of the obligation as at the end of the year 195.65 195.65
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year - -
Net (asset) / liability to be recognised in the balance sheet 195.65 195.65
B (i) Gratuity:
Change in projected benefit obligation
Projected benefit of obligation at the beginning of the year 45.04 2428
Current service cost 28.30 19.44
Past service cost - -
Interest cost 2.84 1.53
Benefits paid = =
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation 3.68 (0.22)
Projected benefit obligation at the end of the year 79.86 45.04
(ii) Compensated Absences:
Change in projected benefit obligation
Projected benefit of obligation at the beginning of the year 51.03 33.97
Current service cost 23.43 20.88
Past service cost 4 g
Interest cost 322 2.14
Benefits paid - -
Remeasurements on obligation - (Gain) / Loss (18.23) (5.96)
Projected benefit obligation at the end of the year 59.45 51.03

C (i) Gratuity:
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Current service cost 28.30 19.44
Past service cost and loss/(gain) on curtailments and settlement

Net interest cost 2.84 1.53

Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss 31.14 2097
(ii) Compensated Absences:

Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Current service cost 2343 20.88

Remeasurements on obligation - (Gain) / Loss (18.23) (5.96)

Net interest cost 322 2.14

Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss 8.42 17.06
(iii) Long term incentive plan

Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Current service cost - 195.65

Remeasurements on obligation - (Gain) / Loss - =

Net interest cost - &

Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss - 195.65
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NOTE 5.09 : Disclosure pursuant to Employee benefits (Continued)

Asat As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
D (i) Grataity:
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial (gains) / loss
- change in financial assumption 4.06 -
- change in demographi ph (2.62) (0.99)
- experience variation 224 0.77
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income 3.68 (0.22)
E Assumptions used
Discount rate (gratuity and compensated absences) 7.30% 6.30%
Discount rate (Long term incentive plan) NA 4.60%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 8.00% 4.00%
Expected average remaining working lives of employees (in years) 326 4.72
5 60 years 60 years
Retirement Age 63 ems 63 years
Withdrawal Rate 30.00% 20.00%

F Sensitivity analysis - Gratuity
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the
defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) 77.66 82.20 43.31 46.91
Salary growth rate (1% movement) 81.48 78.28 46.56 43.61
Withdrawal rate (1% movement) 75.47 75.70 44,82 4'5_.2'2'

G Sensitivity analysis - Compensated Absences
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date 1o one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the
defined benefit ob[igation by the amounts shown below.

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Increase l)ae_r_vue Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) 57.98 61.01 4945 52.75
Salary growth rate (1% movement) 60.51 58.43 52.35 49.79
Withdrawal rate {1% movement) 61.98 56.80 54.61 47.2_4

H Sensitivity analysis - Long term incentive plan

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the
defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) - - 197.41 193.92
Salary growth rate (1% movement) - - 197.53 193.77
Withdrawal rate (1% movement) - - 197.92 193.37

I Other information:
1. The plan is unfunded as on the valuation date.

Weighted average duration of the plan (based on discounted cash flows using mortality, withdrawal rate and interest rate) is 5.55 years for Gratuity and 2.37
years for Compensated Absences.
3. The expected payment expected 1o be paid in next year Rs (.24 Lakhs for Gratity and Rs. 24.46 Lakhs for Compensated Absences.

2
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NOTE 5.10 : Employee stock option plans
The Company provides share-based employee henefits to the employees of 1he Company. The relevant details of the schemes and the gram are as below.

Description of share-based payment arrangements:

As at 31 March 2023, the Company has the following share-based payment arrangements:

Share option plans (equity settled):

According to the Schemes, the employee selected by the Nomination and remuneration committee from time to time will be entitled 1o options, subject to satisfaction of the
prescribed vesting conditions. The Option may be exercised within a specified period.

The Plan was approved by Board of Directors on April 24, 2019 and by the shareholders in EGM dated May 2, 20[9ﬁrmof5mﬂ].mmmmgsm
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each. Pursuant to the said approvals and authority del d by the Board and Shareholders of the Company, the Nominati
C'nmnnueehadmudegrants,ﬂledemlsnfthesmamm@cedmﬂ:ehelowmble

1. Details of the ESOP:

Particulars ESOF Grant 1 ESOP Grant 2 ESOP Grant 3 ESOP Grant 4

ESOP Plan/ Scheme ESOP - 2019 ESOP - 2019 ESOP - 2019 ESOP - 2019

Date of Grants 06 May 2019 01 November 2019 02 November 2020 18 July 2022

Vesting Requirements Vesting Criteria is specified for each Option Holder by the Nomination and R ion
Committee at the time of grant of Options.

Maximum term of Options granted (years) Vesting period of option vary from employee to employee or class of employees. the maximum

vesting period of option is five years from the date of grant of option. Options shall be capable of
being exercised within a period of 6 years from the Date of Vesting.

Method of Settl Equity
Method used for accounting of options Fair Valie Method

18 Movement the ended Mar 2023:
Particulars ESOP Grant 1 ESOP Grant 2 ESOP Grant 3 ESOP Grant 4
No. of Options Outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,06,50,000 12.50,000 10.75.000 =
Options Granted during the year = = s 1.00,00,000
Options Forfeited / Lapsed during the year - - 7,50,000 50,000
Options Exercised during the year = - - =
Number of options Outstanding at the end of the year 2,06,50,000 12,50,000 3.25,000 99,50,000
Number of Options exercisable at the end of the year 2,06,30,000 7.50,000 97.500 =
The weighted average share price of shares exercised during the year NA NA NA NA

ended 31 March 2023

Option Movement d’lll'lm the year emded Mar 2022:

Particulars ESOP Grant 1 ESOP Grant 2 ESOP Grant 3 ESOP Grant 4
No. of Options Outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,06,50,000 13,00,000 10,75.000 NA
Options Granted during the year - - - NA
Options Forfeited / Lapsed during the year - 35,000 - NA
Options Exercised during the year - 15.000 - NA
Number of options On ling at the end of the year 2.06,50,000 12,50,000 10,75,000 NA
Number of Options isable at the end of the year 1,95,75,000 3.75.000 107,500 NA
The weighted average share price of shares exercised during the year NA 10 NA NA

ended 31 March 2022

11 W:lshted Average remaining contractual life:
Particulars ESOP Grant 1 ESOP Grant 2 ESOP Grant 3 ESOP Grant 4
Range of Exercise Price (2 per share) 10 10 11 12
No. of Options Quistanding as on 31 March 2023 2,06,50,000 12,50,000 3.25.000 99.50,000
Contractual Life: Granted but not vested (in years) 001 0.27 098 1.76

IV. Method and A ptions used to esti the fair value of options granted:

The fair value has been calculated using the Black Scholes Option Pricing model. The Assumptions used in the model are a.s follows:

Particulars ESOP Grant 1 ESOP Grant 2 ESOP Grant 3 ESOP Grant 4
Risk Free Interest Rate 7.40% 6.60% 5.80% 7.17%
Weighted average expected hife (in yeus) 6 7 7 5
Expected Volatility 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 19.45%
WciEhLIed average exercise price (T per share) 10.00 10.00 11.00 Lz_oo

V. Effect of share-based transactions on the °s Profit or Loss for the year:
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Empl share based exp 136.78 94.25

Total ESOP reserve outstanding at the end of the year 927.21 79&8
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NOTE 5.11 : Maturity pattern of Assets and Liabilities

Financial statements of the Company are disclosed in the format of order of liquidity. An analysis of its assels and habilities according to their
timing of recoverability and settlement has been presented below in a tabulated format.

Particulars Note As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Within 12 More than 12 Total Within 12 More than 12 Total

Jamthy, ST ootk months
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3.01 21,438.88 - 21,438.88 13,170.32 - 13,170.32
Bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents 3.02 1,022.19 - 1,022.19 1,015.42 - 1,015.42
Trade receivable 3.03 - - - 43.74 = 43.74
Loans 3.04 1,36,815.55 2,31,757.33  3,68,572.88 95,696.39 1,34.212.00 2.29 908.39
Investments 3.05 29,927.23 9,174.55 39,101.78 8,786.45 7.397.85 16,184.30
Other financial assets 3.06 827.51 273.22 1,100.73 35.79 241.00 276.79
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 3.07 445.86 - 445.86 370.17 - 370.17
Deferred tax assets (net) 3.08 - 1,292.82 1,292.82 - 652.72 652.72
Property, plant and equipment 3.09 = 313.71 313.71 . 523.49 523.49
Intangible assets 3.10 - 256.15 256.15 - 337.01 337.01
Other non-financial assets 3:11 242.71 21.73 264.44 203.37 14.00 217.37
TOTAL ASSETS 1,90,719.93 2,43089.51 43380944  1,19321.65 14337807  2,62,699.72
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

‘Within 12 More than 12 Total Within 12 More than 12 Total

months months j@nlhs months

LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 3.12 162.21 - 162.21 134.09 - 134.09
Debt securities 3.13 41,922.35 67,819.80  1,09,742.15 16,951.09 40,474.38 57.425.47
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 3.14 89,112.96 1,06,408.92  1,95,521.88 57,108.75 59,859.33 1.16,968.08
Subordinated Debt 3.15 369.00 5.948.82 6,317.82 - - =
Other financial liabilities 3.16 12,673.11 = 12,673.11 2,167.41 132.95 2,300.36
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions 3.17 26.54 440.16 466.70 20.18 492.47 512.65
Other non-financial liabilities 3.18 4.072.61 - 4,072.61 1,676.57 - 1,676.57
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,48338.78 1,80,617.70  3.28956.48 78,058.10 1,00,959.12 1,79.017.22
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NOTE 5.12 : Asset Liability management

Particulars 107 81014 15te  Overome  Overl Over 3 Over 6 Overl Over 3 Over s
days days 30/31 monthto2 months months mmths to vear to 3 yearsto S years
days months upto 3 upto 6 1 year years years
months months
LIABILITIES
Deposits = = = - = = = = = =
Bomwiggs from banks 75341 300.00  1,501.26  4327.13  10,779.49 21,936.01  36,094.26 85,206.23 6,836.16 -
Market borrowings 395.44 - 361063 521337  15032.07 1336405  18.097.20 7235422 15,780.92 -
Foreign Currency liabilities ~ - - = - = - - =~ ~
ASSETS
Loans & advances 249847  6479.15 B8.191.80 9.158.17 8.680.62 39.816.42  60,170.21 1,46,991.80 19,826.21  68,029.43
Investments - 233471 6,531.74 113.43  13,117.34 8.581.52 928.30 7.579.72 - -
Foreign Currency assets = = = 3 = = = =
The above disclosure is made as per RBI Guidelines on Liquidity Risk Management Framework
In addition to the investments shown in the table above, the Company also has cash & equivalents and undrawn funding lines as under:
- Cash & Cash Equivalents (refer note 3.01) 21.438.88
- Undrawn funding lines 12,600.00
Total 34,038.88
NOTE 5.13 : Exposure to Real Estate Sector
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March
2022
i) Direct exposure
a) Residential Mortgages
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is 58,263.93 59,413.23
rented. Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits.
H) _ Commercial Real Extate
Lending secursd by mortgages on commercial real estsic’s (ofﬁﬁe Imahhng. relall space, muliipurpose commercial 1 A46,455.29 21.143.58
premises, multi-family residential buildn multi mdustrial or warehouse space,
hotels, tand acquisition, development and construction, etc.). Exposure wm:ld also inclode non-fand based (NFB)
limits.
¢) _ Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures
- Residential 1,829.54 2,791.29
- Commercial Real Estate 908.50 -
i) Indirect Exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) 5,916.41 1.874.40
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 2,12, 465.16 85,222.49
NOTE 5.14 : Exposure to Capital Market
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March
2022
i) Direct invesiment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the - =
corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;
il) Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment in shares - -
(including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds;
iii) Advances for any other pusposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debenfures or units of equity oriented 3159475 23.992.44
mutual funds are taken as primary security;
iv) Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible - 8,905.63
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds /
convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds 'does not fully cover the advances;
v) Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers; - 5.019.73
vi) Loans sanctioned to corporats inst the ',ofshmfbondshiebenmmsmoﬂ:ersacunuumundmhusfm - -
meeting promoter's contribution to l.he equity of new companies in anticipation of raising resources;
vii) Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues; - =
viii) Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of primary issue of shares or convertible bonds or conventible - -
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds
ix) Financing to stockbrokers for margm trading = =
x} Al exp to Al i Funds: = 5
(i) Carcgory [ 7 -
(if) Category I 5,000.00 -
(iii) Category Il = =
Total Exposure to Capital Market 36,594.75 37.917.80
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NOTE 6.01 : Disclosures Pursuant to Annex XVI to Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically
Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016
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Significant accounting policies
Significant accounting policies have been given in Note No 2 of the financial statements.

Capital
The disclosure related to capital has been given in Note No 5.04 in the financial statements.

Investments

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Value of Investments

(1) Gross Value of Investments

(a) In India 39.186.76 16,186.88

(b) Outside India z =

(ii) Provision for Depreciation®

(a) In India . = =

(b) Outside India - -

(iii) Net Value of [nvestments

(a) In India 39.186.76 16,186.88

(b) Outside India - -

Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments

(i) Opening balance - -

(ii) Add : Provisions made during the year - -

(iii) Less : Write-off/ write-back of excess provision during the year - -

(iv) Closing balance = =

* ECL Provision on investments are not considered here.

I¥.

Derivatives
During the current and previous year, the Company has not entered into any derivative contract and at the year-end there is no
outstanding derivative contract. Therefore, disclosures pertaining to derivatives are not applicable.

Asset Liability Management Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities
The disclosure on Asset Liability Management Maturity pattern has been given in Note No 5.12 of the financial statements

Exposure to Real Estate Sector
The disclosure on exposure to real estate sector has been given in Note No 5.13 of the financial statements

Exposure to Capital Market
The disclosure on exposure to capital market has been given in Note No 5.14 of the financial statements

Details of financing of parent Company products : None

Details of Single Borrower Limit (SBL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by NBFC:

The Company has not exceeded the Single Borrower Limit (SBL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) during the financial year.
Unsecured Advances against intangible securities : None

Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators : None

Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators : None

Related Party Transactions :
Details of all material transactions with related parties has been given in Notes No 5.05(B) of the financial statements.
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NOTE 6.01 (Continued)

ing the vear/period
s For the year ended  For the year ended
N: Instrument 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
] Bank Loan Facilities CRISIL AA- AA-
2 Commercial Paper CRISIL Al+ Al+
INDIA RATINGS Al+ Al+
3 Market Linked Debentures (MLD) CRISIL PPMLD AA- PPMLD AA-
4 NCD CRISIL AA- AA-
INFOMERICS - AA-
XVIII. Remuneration of Directors :
For the year ended  For the year ended
z‘; Instrument 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1 Transactions with the Non-Executive Directors
Payment of Director SittinE fees 28.25 17.20

Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies

There are no prior period items impacting current year's profit and loss exceept tax provision which is disclosed separately in the
statement of profit and loss. There are no changes in accounting policies during current year.

XX Revenue Recognition

There is no postponement of revenue due to pending resolution of significant uncertainties.

XXL Break up of ‘Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1 Provisions for depreciation on Investment - -
2 Provision towards NPA 104.65 -
3 Provision made towards Income tax 2.450.07 1,535.13
4 Other Provision and Contingencies E =
5 Provision for Standard Assets 468.02 557.61
XXII. Draw down from reserves : None
XXIII. Concentration of Advances
For the vear ended  For the year ended
Pivticulsics 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1 Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 1,45,904.39 1,22,288.38
2 Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the NBFC 39.45% 53.03%
XXIV. Concentration of E_xp:slm
For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1 Total Exposures (o twenty largest borrowers 1,54,357.19 1,37,348.16
to
2 Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers to Total Exposures of the 35.41% 49.91%
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NOTE 6.01 (Continued)

XXV. Concentration of NPA

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1 Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts 31.70 -
XXVL. Sectorwise NPA (% of NPA to Total Advances in that sector)
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1 Agriculture and allied activitics - -
2  MSME - -
3 Corporate borrowers - -
4 Services 0.00% =
5 Unsecured personal loans 1.23% -
6 Auto loans - =
7 Other personal loans 0.22% ~
XXV. Movement of NPAs
For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1 Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) - -
2 Movement of NPAs (Gross)
(a) Opening balance - -
(b) Additions during the year 116.27 -
(¢) Reductions during the year 81.73 -
(d) Closing balance 3454 -
3 Movement of Net NPAs
(a)  Opening balance - -
(b) Additions during the year - -
(¢) Reductions during the year - -
(d) Closing balance - -
4  Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
(a) Opening balance - -
(b) Additions during the year 104.65 -
(¢) Reductions during the year - -
(d) Closing balance 104.65 -

XVIIIL. Overseas Assets (for those with joint ventures and Subsidiaries abroad):
There are no Overseas Assels,

Off- balance Sheet SPVs sponsored (which are required to be consolidated as per accounting norms):

There are no Off-balance Sheet SPV's sponsored by the Company which are required to be consolidated as per accounting norms.

XX. Customer Complaints

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1 No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the period - -
2 No. of complaints received during the period 13 -
3 No. of complaints redressed during the period 13 -
4 No. of complaints pending at the end of the period - -
XXL Loan against security of single product - Gold Jewellery
For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Percentage of Loan against security of single product - Gold Jewellery to Total Assets 0.48% Nil

No auctions have been conducted by the Company during the current year and previous year.
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NOTE 6.02 (A) :
Statements- Notes to Acceunts of NBFCs

L Sectoral Exposure

Additional disclosures Pursuant to RBI Circular No. RBLI/2022-23/26 DOR.ACC.REC. No.20/21.04.2018/2022-23 - Disclosures in Financial

C_l_ntutYm Previous Year
Total Expesure Percentage  of Ti::ﬂ“ A Exposure Paientige  of
Sectors e N gy (nclvdes  om e Gro NPAs o
balance sheet e balance sheet
‘NPAs total e:pnnm in NPAs total exposure in
and off-balance ailiik and off-balance it 5
mw} sheet exposare)
1__ Agriculture and Allied Activities - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
2 Industry
i Micro and Small 28,054.67 - 0.00% 7.550.44 - 0.00%
i1 Medium 1,733.51 - 0.00% - - 0.00%
i Large 2,70,794.08 - 0.00% 2,25,719.25 - 0.00%
iv._ Others 38,115.13 80.29 0.21% - - 0.00%
Total of Industry (i+ii+ii+Others) 338,697.39 80.29 0.02% 2,33,269.69 - 0.00%
3 Services
i NBFCs 21,319.11 - 0.00% 12,649.73 - 0.00%
ii Retail Trade 14,245.05 0.90 0.01% 19,105.31 - 0.00%
e e 1121921 : 0.00% : = 0.00%
Procurement)
Others 47.994.38 - 0.00% 17,967.75 - 0.00%
Total of Services (Hii+iiH+Others) 94,771.75 0.90 0.00% 49,722.79 - 0.00%
4 Personal Loans
i Education Loans 1,768.14 4.18 0.24% - = 0.00%
i Others 698.66 30.90 4.42% 585.39 - 0.00%
Total of Personal Loans (i+ii) 2,466.80 35.08 1.42% 585.39 - 0.00%
5. Others, if any (please specify) - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
I.  Intra-group exposures
For the year For the year
Particulars - ended ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
i) Total amount of intm-group exposure 500.00 Nil
ii) Total amount of top 20 intra-group exposures Nil Nil
iii) Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure of the NBFC on borrowers/customers 0.11% Nil
M.  Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure
The Company does not have any unhedged foreign currency exposure for the year ended March 31, 2023 (Previous year : Rs Nil).
V. Disclosure of complaints
1)  Summary of information on complaints received by the Comp from s and from the offices of Ombudsman
Sr. For the year For the year
No. Particulars ended Eadel
: 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Colnplllnts ived by the Company frem its ©
1 N of [ ing at beginning of the year - -
2 Number o:l'cnmplauns mcmd during the year 13 -
3 Number of d:sposeddumglheymr i3 -
3.1 Of which, b ufr- jected by the Company - -
4 Number of complaints pendmg at the end of the year - =
Mai ble complaints received by the Company from Office of Ombuds
5 Number of maintainabl iplaints received by the Company from Office of Ombud 2 -
5.1 Of 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the Company by Office of Ombudsman 2 -

5.2 Of 5, number of complaints resolved through conciliation/medsation/advisories issued by Office of Ombudsman -

5.3 Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Office of Ombudsman against the Company -

6 Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time (other than those appealed)
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NOTE 6.02 (A) : Additional disclosures Pursuant to RBI Cirenlar No. RBU/2022-23/26 DORACCREC . No.20/21.04.2018/2022-23 - Disclosures in Financial
Statements- Notes to Accounts of NBFCs (Continued)

V.

7)  Top grounds of complaints r d by the Company from .
2 %o increase/
Sahorat Numberof  decreaseinthe  Numberof  OfS, number of
Grounds of complaints, (i.e. complaints Commpliaty complaints number of complaints complaints
relating fo) L ekt ':::; received during  complaints  pending st the  pending beyond
b@""”"‘“ the year received over the  end of the year 30 days
2 previous year
i 2 ] 4 5 6

(.'llrrm_;ar
Loans and advances - 4 100 - -
Non receipt of documents - 1 100 - -
Reporting - 8 100 - -
Others - - - - -
Total = 13 100 = -

Previous Year
Loans and advances - - - - -
Non receipt of documents - - - - -
Reporting = 5 2 = =2
Others - - = =
Total = i .. = -

Breach of Covenant

Tbemm-enoimanmsofbmchofwvmamsofloansavaﬂedmddusamriliesimwdchringﬂrmmymraﬂeded:M,ZﬂBandp:wimsymmdﬂIMzthL

2022,

NOTE 6.02 (B) : Disclosures Pursuant to RBI Circular No. RBI/2022-23/29 DOR.CRE.REC . No.25/03.10.001/2022-23 - Loans and Advances — Regulatory
Restrictions - NBFCs

Loans sanctioned to Directors, Senior Officers and relatives of Directors

Sr. For the year For the year
Ng, -Tetiabay ended ended
3 h 31 March 2022
1 Directors and their relatives = s
2 Entities associated with directors and their relatives 500.00 -
3

Senior Officers and their relatives
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NOTE 6.03 (A) : Disclosures pursuant to Master Directions - RBI (Transfer of Loan Exposures) Directions, 2021 vide

circular RB/DOR/2021-22/86 DOR.STR.REC.51/21.04.048/2021-22

(i) Details of loans not in defanlt acquired through assignments:
For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
_Aggregrate amount of loans acquired 18,826.24 5,939.48
Weighted average residual maturity (in years) 3.50 129,
Weighted average holding period by originator (in years) 0.92 1.18
Retention of beneficial economic interest by the originator 10% 11%
Tangible security coverage 46% 80%
Rating—wise distribution of loans Unrated Unrated
(ii) Details of loans not in default transferred by way of Novation:
" For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number of loans 3 1
Aggregrate amount of loans transferred 5,303.00 2.,400.00
Weighted average reamining maturity (in years) 2.70 2.25
Weighted average holding period after origination (in years) 0.82 225
Retention of beneficial economic interest Nil Nil
Coverage Tangible security coverage 100% 100%
Rating-wise distribution of loans NA NA
Number of transactions where transferror has agreed to replace the transferred loans Nil Nil
Number of transferred loans replaced Nil Nil

(iii) Duning the year, the company has not transferred / acquired loans in default.

NOTE 6.03 (B) : Disclosures pursuant to Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Securitisation of Standard Assets) Directions,

2021 vide circular RBI/DOR/2021-22/85 DOR.STR.REC.53/21.04.177/2021-22

The Company has not sold any of its assets during the current year and previous year by way of securitisation. Therefore, disclosure

pertaining to securitisation is not applicable.
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NOTE 6.04 : Disclosures pursuant to RBI Notification No, RBI2019-20/170 DOR(NBFC). CC.PI.No.109/22.10106/2019-20

As per the said RBI notification, a comparison (as shown in below Appendix) between provisions required under IRACP and impainment allowances made
under Ind AS 109 should be disclosed by NBFC in the notes to their financial statements to provide a benchmark to their Boards, RBI supervisors and other
stakeholders, on the adequacy of provisioning for credit losses.

As per the said notification, where impairment allowance under Ind AS 109 is lower than the provisioning required under IRACP (including standard asset
provisioning), NBFC shall appropriate the difference from their net profit or loss after tax to a separate ‘Impairment Reserve’. The balance in the
‘Impairment Reserve” shall not be reckoned for regulatory capital. Further, no withdrawals shall be permitted from this reserve without prior permission
from the Department of Supervision, RBL

Appendix
.
Lo Difference
. 53 between Ind AS
Asset classifica Gross Carrying  Allowances Net Ca ] Provisions 109
Asset Classification as per RBI Norms  tion as per Ind Amount as per (Provisions) as ying required as per .
: 3 ; Amount S ; provisions and
AS 109 Ind AS required under IRACP norms IRACP
Ind AS 109 -
N (D) @) @) @) [©) (6) () =d)-(6)
Performing Assets
Staridiiil Stage | 3,95,797.64 1,256.95 3,94,540.69 1.481.61 (224.66)
Stage 2 194.82 0.57 194.25 0.77 (0.20)
Subtotal 3,95,992.46 1,257.52 3,94,734.94 1,482.38 (224.86)
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 34.54 104.65 (70.11) 11.53 93.12
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 = = = - -
I to 3 years Stage 3 - - = - -
More than 3 years Stage 3 - = & = 5
Subtotal for doubtful - - - - B
Loss Stage 3 - - = - @
Subtotal for NPA 34.54 104.65 (70.11) 11.53 93.12
Other items such as guamntees, loan Stage 1 39,827.94 131.74 - - 131.74
commitments, ete. which are in the scope of Ind
AS 109 but not covered under current Stage 2 & = = & -
Income Recognition, Asset Classification and
Provisioning (IRACP) norms Stage 3 < 2, = - =
Subtotal 39,827.94 131.74 - - 131.74
Stage | 4,35,625.58 1,388.69 3,94,540.69 1,481.61 (92.92)
Stage 2 194.82 0.57 194.25 0.77 (0.20)
TOXAL Stage 3 34.54 104.65 (70.11) 11.53 93.12

Total 4,35,854.94 1.493.91 3,94,664.83 1.493.91 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 6.05 : Disclosures pursuant to Annex 1V to Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important
Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

Particulars
LIABILITIES SIDE

As at March 31,2023 1
Amount Amount|
itstanding overdue

As at March 31, 2022
Amount Amount
t ding overdue

(1) |Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs inclusive of interest
accrued thereon but not paid:

(a) |Debenture : Secured

: Unsecared

98,094.98| - 45.616.09 -

631782 = 3 .
(b) |Deferred Credits - o 4 e
(c) |Term Loans 1,95,521.88 -l  1,15968.08 -

(d) |Inter-corporate loans and borrowing - -
(e) |Commercial Paper 11,647.17 -
(f) _|Public Deposits - - -
(g) |Other Loans - Working capital demand loans from bank - 1.000.00
(=) Overdrafi - - F 2

11,809.38 -

(2

~—

Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of
interest accrued thereon but not paid):

(a) |In the form of Unsecured debentures - - - -
(b) |In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where
there is a shortfall in the value of security

(c) |Other public deposits - - 1 1

ASSETS SIDE

(3) |Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables (other
than those included in (4) below ):

(a) |Secured

(b) |Unsecured

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

3,41,094.27
28,755.79

2,25,074.06
5,532.03

(4) |Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets
counting towards asset financing activities

(i) |Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
(a) |Financial lease = -
(b) _|Operating lease - -
| ___|(i)) |Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:

[]

(a) |Assets on hire = B
(b) |Repossessed Assets = -
(iii) |Other loans counting towards asset financing activities
(a) |Loans where assets have been repossessed - =
(b) [Loans other than (a) above - B

(5) |Break-up of Investments
Current Investments

1. |Quoted

(1)  |Shares: (a) Equity - 5
(b) Prefercnce . g
(i) |Debentures and Bonds -

(1i) |Units of mutual funds

8.789.03

(iv) |Govemnment Securities

(v) |Others (please specify)

Unquoted

(i)  |Shares: (a) Equity

(b) Preference

(i) _|Debentures and Bonds

(iii) |Units of mutual funds

(iv) |Government Securities

(v) |Commercial paper

(vi) |Others - Pass through certificates




ARKA FINCAP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Currency : Indion Rupees n Lakhs)

NOTE 6.05 : Disclosure of details as required by Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or
Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015 (Continued)

|Long Term investments

1. [Quoted

(1) |Shares: (a) Equity

(b) Preference

(ii) |Debentures and Bonds

6,483.59

(1) |Units of mutual funds

(iv) |Government Securities

(v)  |Others (please specify)

2. |Unquoted

(i) |Shares: (a) Equity

(b) Preference

(ii) |Debentures and Bonds

(1ii) |Units of mutual funds

(iv) |Government Securities

(v) |Others - Pass through certificates

272022

©)

above:

Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4)

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Category

Amount (net of provisions)

Secured Unsecured

Total

Unsecured Total

1. |Related Parties

(i)  |Subsidiaries

(i) [Companies in the same group

(1i) |Other related parties

2. |Other than related parties

3,41,094.27|

28,755.79

3,69.850.06 2.25.074.06

5,532.03]  2.30.606.09

(7

term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted):

Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Category

Market Value /
Break up or fair
value or

NAV Pr )

Market
Value / Break
up or fair
value or
NAV

Book Value
(Net of
Provisions)

1. |Related Parties

(i)  |Subsidiaries

(i) |Companies in the same group

(iti) |Other related parties

2. |Other than related parties

39,186.76

39,099.11

16,186.87 16,184.29

®)

Other information

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

||

(1) |Gross Non-Performing Assets

(a) |Related parties

(b) |Other than related parties

||

-

(i) {Net Non-Performing Assets

(a) |Related parties

(b) |Other than related parties

(i) |Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt
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Note 6.06: Trade reccivables aging schedule - 31 March 2023

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than
6 months

6 months -1
year

1-2 Years

2-3 years

More than
3 years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables —
considered good

(i1) Undisputed Trade Receivables —
which have significant increase in
credit risk

(1ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables —
credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade
Receivables—considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables —
which have significant increase in
credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables —
credit impaired

Trade receivables aging schedule - 31 March 2022

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than
6 months

6 months -1
year

1-2 Years

2-3 years

More than
3 years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables —
considered good

43.74

43.74

(i1) Undisputed Trade Receivables —
which have significant increase in
credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables —
credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade
Receivables—considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables —
which have significant increase in
credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables —
credit impaired

Note 6.07: Trade Payables aging schedule - 31 March 2023

Particulars

Onutstanding for following periods from due date of

payment#

Not due

Less than 1
year

1-2 years

1-3 years

More than
3 years

Total

(i) MSME*

17.73

17.73

(ii) Others*

144.48

144.48

(111) Disputed dues - MSME

(iv)Disputed dues - Others

* The amount includes provision of Rs. 157.31 lacs which were unbilled as on 31 March 2023,

Trade Payables aging schedule - 31 March 2022

Particulars

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of

payment#

Not due

Less than 1
year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than
3 years

(i) MSME

9.72

(ii) Others*

124.37

(i1} Disputed dues — MSME

{iv)Disputed dues - Others

* The amount includes provision of Rs. 43.83 lacs which were unbilled as on 31 March 2022,
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Note 6.08: Other notes

6.08 (i): Accounting Ratios

- Asat As at

p— 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Debt-equity ratio ' 3.02:1 2.1:1
Current ratio - 1.29: 1 1.53: 1
Long term debt to working capital ) 425:1 243:1
Bad debts to Account receivable ratio 0.01% Nil
Current liability ratio 045:1 044:1
Total debts to total assets * 076:1 0.68:1
Gross NPA (%) 0.01% Nil
Net NPA (%) Nil Nil
Capital adequacy ratio (CRAR) 254.?5 30.929%

" Debt = Debt Securities + Borrowings (other than debi securities) + Subordinated Debt.
* Current ratio = Current assets / Current liabilities.
¥ (a) Long term debt = debt repayable after 12 months.
{b) working capital = curren! assets - current liability
* Current Liability Ratio = Current Liobilities / Total Liabilities.
* Total debt = Total Liabilities

6.08 (ii): Relationship with struck off companies

The company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

6.08 (iii): Registration of charges
For the year ended 31 March 2023
Registration of charges were performed as per the terms of sanction within the due dates during the year ended 31 March 2023

For the year ended 31 March 2022
Registration of charges were performed as per the terms of sanction within the due dates during the year ended 31 March 2022

6,08 (iv): Satisfaction of charges
For the year eaded 31 March 2023
Satisfaction of charges were performed as per the terms of sanction within due date during the year ended 31 March 2023

For the year ended 31 March 2022
Satisfaction of charges were performed as per the terms of sanction within due date during the year ended 31 March 2022

.08 (v): Utilization of borrowed funds

(i) No funds bave been advanced or loaned or mvested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company 1o or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the I liary shall, whether, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“UMimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign entities {“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
wriling or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (*Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Standards Issued but not yet Effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time
to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian A ing Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

Particulars Explanation

st
Ind AS 1-Presentation of Financial Statements This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting
policies. The effective date for adoption of this i is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company

05 tikone Fnaneial

has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the d is insignificant in the
Ind AS 8-Accounting Policies, Changes in This amendment bas introduced a definition of ‘accounting esti ' and included d to Ind AS 1o help entities
Accounting Estimates and Errors distingnish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this

amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023, The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no
impact on its standalone financial statements.

Ind AS 12- Income Taxes This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply lo transactions that give
rise to equal and offsetting temporary diffe The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods
beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the | and there is no impact on its standalone
financial statement.
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NOTE 7.01 : Regrouping and / or reclassification
Figures for the previous years have been regrouped and / or reclassified wherever considered necessary to conform to current year presentation.
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